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Commissioner
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January 21, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services, to exercise a renewal option and enter into an
amendment to an existing agreement with Catholic Medical Center (Vendor #177240-B002), 195
McGregor Street, Suite LL22, Manchester, NH by increasing the price limitation by $184,000, from
$184,000 to $368,000, to continue to provide a comprehensive screening program for the early
detection of breast and cervical cancer in greater Manchester, and to extend the completion date from
June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2015 or date of Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later. Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreement June 5,
2013 (ltem #93). 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approvai from
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

Fiscal Job Current |Increase/Decrease| Revised

Class/Object Class Title Year Number Budget Amount Modified
Budget

102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | SFY 14 | 90080081 | $ 92,000 $ 0 $ 92,000

102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | SFY 15 | 90080081 | $ 92,000 $ 0 $ 92,000

102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | SFY 16 | 90080081 | § 0 $ 92,000 $ 92,000

102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sv¢ | SFY 17 90080081 | $ 0 $ 92,000 $ 92,000

Total | $184,000 $184,000 $368,000

EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used to continue to provide comprehensive screening for the
early detection of breast and cervical cancer and to provide two population-based outreach initiatives in
greater Manchester. To be eligible for these services, a woman must be between the ages of 21-64,
uninsured or underinsured, and living at or below 250% of the federal poverty level. Priority for breast

Impraving heahh. preventing disease, reducing costs for all
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and cervical cancer screening shall be for women 50-64; and priority for cervical cancer screening shall
be for women who have never had a Pap test or have not had one in over five years. Women who
receive abnormal test results will receive additional coverage for diagnostic work-up and case
management through initiation of treatment, as needed, at primary care facilities and two hospitals in
Manchester.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, as funder of this program, now requires the
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program to address population based education to elevate the importance
of these screenings for all women. This amendment makes a stronger commitment to improve
screening programs and screening rates by conducting a baseline assessment of all breast and
cervical cancer screening for women in New Hampshire, and through implementation of evidence-
based strategies to increase screening rates and continual assessment of progress. The Contractor
has capacity to comply with this requirement because more women have moved out of the target direct
service population and have instead gained access to insurance coverage through the NH Health
Protection Program or the Affordable Care Act's Health Insurance Marketplace.

According to the most recent data from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, breast
cancer is the most frequently diagnosed cancer among women in New Hampshire and in the United
States. In the years 2007-2011, there were 5,392 breast cancer cases diagnosed in New Hampshire
and 880 deaths reported. In the years 2007-2011, there were 948,863 new cases of breast cancer in
the United States and 203,790 deaths. Cervical cancer is one of the most treatable cancers when
detected early through a Pap test; as many as 93% of cervical cancer cases could be prevented by
screening and human papillomavirus vaccination. During the years 2007-2011, there were 183 cases
of cervical cancer and 70 deaths in New Hampshire. In the years 2007-2011, there were 60,269 cases
of cervical cancer in the United States and 19,969 deaths.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Breast and Cervical
Cancer Program will be unable to annually enroll 420 women from the greater Manchester area in a
timely and efficient manner for regular breast and cervical cancer screening services, and the
Department’s statewide efforts to increase the rate of breast and cervical cancer screening for all
women in New Hampshire will not occur.

The Catholic Medical Center was originally selected for this project through a competitive bid
process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ web
site from December 21, 2012 through January 21, 2013. The Catholic Medical Center was the only
respondent to the Request for Proposals. Internal and external reviewers formed the Department’s
evaluation team and upon completing the review of the Catholic Medical Center's proposal, the
reviewers recommended that the contract be awarded to the Center. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Governor and Executive Council letter that originally approved this
agreement, both the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section and the original agreement contained
the option to renew for two additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
Because Catholic Medical Center has continually well-performed its contractual responsibilities under
this agreement, the Department is exercising this option.
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The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement.

» 75% of all mammograms will be provided to program eligible women age 50-64 at all sites.

»  25% of all mammograms will be provided to women under age 50 at all screening sites.

»  20% of newly enrolled women for Pap tests have never had a Pap test or not had a Pap test
in over five years at all screening sites.

= Screening services are provided to a minimum of 420 program eligible women each year
between all facilities.

= Screening rates are improved at two screening sites due to the Contractor’s implementing a
policy, system or environmental change.

= At least two-population-based outreach/education activities are implemented.

Area served: greater Manchester.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Investigations and Technical Assistance, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number, 93.283,
Federal Award |dentification Number #U58DP003930.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

DA g0 ¢

José Thier Montero, MD, MHCDS
Director

Approvgd byuf\\o\/L Jl\/ \L\OM\

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commnssnoner

The Department of Health and Human Seruvices’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Contract

This 1 Amendment to the Catholic Medical Center, contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment One") dated this 7 ** day of Ja , 2015, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sgrvices (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and the Catholic Medical Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 195 McGregor Street, Suite LL22,
Manchester, NH 03102.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 5, 2013, Item #93, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and
increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Change account number in P-37, Block 1.6, of the General Provisions, to read:
05-95-90-902010-5659-102-500731

2. Change completion date in P-37, Block 1.7, of the General Provisions, to read:
June 30, 2017

3. Change price limitation in P-37, Block 1.8, of the General Provisions, to read:
$368,000.

4. Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

5. Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

6. Add Exhibit B-1 SFY 2016

7. Add Exhibit B-1 SFY 2017

8. Add Exhibit B-2

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials: :
Page 1 of 3 Date: /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

9. Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

10. Add Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions

11. Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1
This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Saly i/
-V

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

Catholic Medical Center

//7 J15”
Date Name: kﬁo\sa h [Jepa MD
Title: esident ~ CECO

Acknowledgement:

State of _A/// , County of /ﬁ //Séann‘{ <A on // 7//5’ , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Loeit 1 )bt

Signature of Notybublic o ;

Doroty (¢ Welsh

Name and Title of Notary-erdustice-of-the-Reace

\NLHTT) .
My Commissi \R;z-‘pir&;””’ 0, & o7

Q < MY X

SN commISSION 3 %

CA/DHHS/100213§ : EXPIRES H = Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

31 [14 N\~

Date [ / Name: A A “(ﬂéﬁ
Title: i 6 '
K
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approvea by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor Initials:
Page 3of 3 : Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. General Provisions
1.1. Required Services

1.1.1.  The Contractor shall provide directly and, through one or more agreement(s) with
one other hospital and with other health care facilities in the greater Manchester,
New Hampshire area, a comprehensive screening and administration program for
the early detection of breast and cervical cancer.

1.1.1.1.

1.1.1.2.

1.1.1.3.

1.1.1.4.

Screening services shall include: clinical pelvic examination; clinical
breast examination, Pap test and HPV test if appropriate, mammogram if
appropriate, and shall follow nationally accepted screening guidelines.

Outreach services shall include educating priority populations about the
available screening services, including one on one education sessions.

Case management services shall be provided for all abnormal screening
results.

Representatives from the BCCP reserve the right to make on-site
monitoring visits to screening sites, upon reasonable prior notice.

1.1.2. Additional services to be provided by the Contractor shall include the following:

1.1.2.1.

1.1.2.2.

1.1.2.3.

1.1.2.4.

1.1.2.5.

1.1.2.6.
1.1.2.7.

CU/DHHS/103114

Site Coordinator/Case Manager shall continue to administer and oversee
the provision of breast and cervical cancer screening and case
management services to the prioritized population.

The establishment of sub contractual agreements, within a mutually
agreed timeframe to be approved by the Division of Public Health
Services, with a mutually agreed upon number of hospital(s) or other
health care facilities in the greater Manchester, New Hampshire area, to
carry out breast and cervical cancer screening services for the specified
number of women, within the prioritized population.

Coordinate with the BCCP to provide outreach services to reach the
priority population for breast and cervical cancer screening in specified
targeted communities statewide.

Identification of appropriate medical resources for consultation as
needed.

Assure the establishment of a list of primary care providers and
specialists at each clinic site who are willing to see uninsured patients
with abnormal results.

Assure that all providers of clinical services are Medicaid providers.

Assure the completion and submission of form(s) to the State office of the
BCCP for each woman screened through the BCCP at subcontracted
screening sites, including: an enroliment form; a data form describing
cervical cancer screening completed, with results; a data form describing
breast cancer screening completed, with results; and a diagnostic form for
any follow-up completed following positive screen results, and assuring

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials E&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

1.1.2.8.

1.1.2.9.

1.1.2.10.

1.1.2.11.

1.1.2.12.

that time schedules as outlined in the BCCP Policy and Procedure
Manual are met.

Assure that case management standards outlined in the BCCP Policy and
Procedures Manual are met.

Provide a minimum of two population-based outreach activities,
promoting nationally accepted breast and cervical cancer screening
recommendations.

Conduct a baseline assessment of breast and cervical cancer screening
rates at each subcontracted site.

Implement evidence-based strategies to increase screening rates for all
women, and continually assess and report rates to NH DPHS BCCP Site
Coordinator.

Implement at least two policy, system or environmental change at two
sites that create a demonstrated increase in cancer screening rates.

1.2. Required Subcontracted Services

1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following services are provided through sub
contractual agreements, vendor agreements, or memorandums of agreement:

1.2.1.1.

1.2.1.2.

1.2.1.3.

1.2.14.

1.2.1.5.

1.2.1.6.

1.2.1.7.

1.2.1.8.

Screening services to a minimum of 105 program eligible women per
contract quarter for an annual total of 420 women. All screening services
shall be provided to women who meet program eligibility criteria.

Individualized education sessions performed by licensed health
professional(s).

Follow-up and diagnostic procedures as clinicaily indicated to include
those procedures approved by the BCCP.

Mammography screening services, with no less than 75% of all
mammograms provided for women ages 50 to 64, and no more than 25%
of all mammograms provided for women under age 50.

Cervical cancer screening services, with a prioritized target of 20% of all
newly enrolled women either never having had a Pap test or who have
not had a Pap test in over five years.

Provide outreach services to reach the intended audience, in
collaboration with the BCCP.

Collaborate with the BCCP to provide updated training and professional
information to subcontracted program staff, as needed.

Collaborate with the New Hampshire Comprehensive Cancer
Collaboration in order to address the breast and cervical cancer
objective(s) in the State of NH Comprehensive Cancer Plan.

1.2.2. Additional requirements for sub contractual agreements shall include:

1.2.2.1.

CU/DHHS/103114

All services shall be provided in accordance with the BCCP Policy and
Procedure Manual provided to each site.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials S ;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

1.2.2.2.  All reimbursement shall be based on specified Medicare Current
Procedural Terminology (CPT) code rates provided to each
subcontracted screening site.

1.2.2.3. Al mammography facilities utilized shall be Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) certified under the Mammography Quality Standards Act (MQSA).

1.2.2.4. All pathology laboratories utilized shall meet the standards and
regulations promulgated by the Health Care Financing Administration
under the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act (CLIA) of 1988.

1.3. Required Administrative Services

1.3.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative services to include the following:

1.3.1.1. Provide for periodic monitoring of clinical quality and data collection as
stated in the BCCP Policy and Procedures Manual through ongoing site
evaluation visits, chart audits, educational activities, review of patient
satisfaction surveys and other related quality assurance activities.

1.3.1.2. Provide updated information to the BCCP regarding: clinic schedules;
outreach and promotion taking place at subcontract screening sites;
staffing at subcontract screening sites; and other pertinent information as
needed.

1.3.1.3. Be available to meet with BCCP staff as needed throughout the contract
period.

1.3.1.4. Notwithstanding Article 2 of the original Agreement (P-37), the Contractor
shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the workplan
and annual report format as requested by the BCCP. The BCCP shall
provide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes.

1.3.1.5. Site Coordinator or designee will attend the annual BCCP meeting.

1.4. Populations Served and Prioritized

1.4.1. One on one education sessions shall be available for each woman ages 21-64,
who are living at or below 250% of the federal poverty level, and are uninsured or
underinsured.

1.4.2. Priority for breast cancer screening shall be for women ages 50-64.

1.4.3. Priority for cervical cancer screening shall be for women who have never had a
Pap test or have not had one in over five years.

1.4.4. Outreach and related assessment activities to increase the number of screenings
that follow nationally accepted screening recommendations are intended to serve
all women in NH.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials \; ;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

2. Compliance and Reporting Requirements
2.1. Compliance Requirements

2.2.

21.1.

As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for persons
with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of Limited English Proficiency
(LEP). To ensure compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets
Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Contractor must submit
a detailed description of the language assistance services they will provide to
persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services, within 10 days of the contract effective date.

Reporting Requirements

221.

222

2.2.3.

224

The Contractor shall submit monthly enroliment and monthly budget summary
reports for all subcontracts.

The Contractor shall submit monthly status updates for each site regarding
evidence-based interventions/Policy, System or Environment (PSE) change
strategies to increase screening rates.

The Contractor shall submit baseline screening data for breast and cervical cancer
screenings to the BCCP twice per year, from all subcontractors.

The Contractor shall provide copies of fully executed subcontract agreements to
DHHS, BCCP Program Coordinator prior to start of such contracts.

3. Performance Measures

3.2.

. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance measures are annually achieved

and monitored monthly:

3.1.1.

3.1.2.

3.1.3.

3.1.7.

At least 75% of all mammograms will be provided to women ages 50-64 at all
screening sites;

No more than 25% of all mammograms will be provided to women under age 50 at
all screening sites;

20% of newly enrolled women for Pap tests have never had a Pap test or have not
had a Pap test in over five years at all screening sites;

Screening services are provided to a minimum of 420 program eligible women
each year between all facilities;

Screening rates are improved for all women at all sites regardiess of BCCP
eligibility;

Screening rates are improved at two screening sites due to the Contractor
implementing a policy, system or environmental change (PSE);

At least two evidence-based population-based outreach/education activities are
implemented.

On a monthly basis, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the BCCP a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that did not meet monthly benchmarks.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials g ;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A - Amendment 1

3.3. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the BCCP a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials &
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses incurred in
the performance of services during the period of July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2017 shall not
exceed:

a. $92,000 in SFY 2016 and $92,000 in SFY 2017 to provide breast and cervical cancer
screening in the greater Manchester area, for a total amount of $184,000.

b. Funding is available as follows:
e $184,000 - 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA #93.283, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN),
U58DP003930

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and
indirect costs and expenses including but not limited to personnel costs and operating
expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the attached SFY 2016 and 2017 budgets
(Exhibits B-1). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees
not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or
any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period.
Reimbursement shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous
month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State
for each of the Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty
(20) working days following the end of the month during which the contract activities were
completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60) days after
the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable costs
and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to
adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers, within the price limitation,
may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds
to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a

useful life beyond one year.
|
Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

8. The Contractor shall annually provide a match of one dollar ($1) for every three dollars ($3)
of federal funds provided through this agreement. Match is defined as any service, facility,
or equipment provided free, and it shall be provided in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations. The match can be in the form of cash or in-kind services, such
as differential screening, clinical, and diagnostic cost, promotional cost, meetings, travel,
training (given or attended), transportation, education, or fund raisers related to the “Let No
Woman Be Overlooked Breast and Cervical Cancer Program.” The Contractor shall annually
report the match to the State utilizing the Match Report Form (Exhibit B-2).

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2016

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Catholic Medical Center

Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening - Greater
Budget Request for: Manchester Area

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

li

1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 48,850.031% $ 48,859.03
2. Employee Benefits $ 3,83517 | $ - $ 3,835.17
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation 3 - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ 478080 9% - $ 4,780.80
Office $ - $ - $ -

6. Travel $ - $ - $ -

7. Occupancy $ - $ - 3 -

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - 3 - $ -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ 1,500.00 | $ - $ 1,500.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ 250.001% - $ 250.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 25900.001% - $ 25,900.00

13. Other: Clinical Fees for Nurse Midwives | $ 6,875.00 | $ - $ 6,875.00

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - 3 - $ -
TOTAL $ 92,000.00|$ - $ 92,000.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS \(N

Exhibit B-1 Budget - Amendment # Contractor Initials:
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Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2017

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Catholic Medical Center

Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening -- Greater
Budget Request for: Manchester Area

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17

otal oalary/vvages

Employee Benefits

Consultants

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

o

Travel

N

Occupancy

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

1,500.00

1,500.00

11.

Staff Education and Training

250.00

250.00

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

25,900.00

25,900.00

13.

Other: Clinical Fees for Nurse Midwives6

6,875.00

6,875.00

TOTAL

Al AR |R|A|R|n|A|R|RIR|AlA|R AR | |n |p|Rln|p|nlin|anlar|ennlpnlen|emnlw|en

92,000.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget - Amendment #
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B-2 Match Report Form

Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program

MATCH REPORT FORM

New Hampshire
Breast & Cervical Cancer Screening Program

MATCH FEPORT FORM
NAME: MATCH/YEAR:
Vohunteer {1 Contractor 00 Provider O
CONTRACT IN-KIND MATCH: O
ADDRESS: “*MATCH RATE FER HOUR: OVolunteer - $20/hr
CIIY, Z21P, OManager/ Sttt - $40/hr
TELEPHONE: OPfrovider - $175/hr
MATCH DOCUMENTATION
DATE IN.KIND/CASH MATCH ACTIVITY #0OF HOURS | MATCH RATE* CONTRACT TOTAL
MATCH
TOTAL
FIOCPHI et 9 i & e Satf AT IO St Form Mank dix
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of empioyment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shail be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ESE
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shalt constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C Amendment #1

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title V1 of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ;g g
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, reguiations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promuigated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or availabie funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the

option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Empioyment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations ~ Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

/)5 -
Date Name: Ypfed /J@/OZ e
Title: Pres:Jf’NL oC Ff O
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, John G. Cronin, Esg, Officer and Secretary, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Catholic Medical Center, a non profit corporation.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Executive Committee of the Board
of Directors of the corporation, duly held on December 18 2014.

RESOLVED: That the President and CEQ, Dr. Joseph Pepe, is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter
into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the "/  dayof 7}&)\/.0'1/5,- ,20§

{Liats KWT S nO

4. Joseph Pepe, MD, is the duly elected President and CEO of Catholic Medical Center.

?\Mﬁ /
w. rghin, ESY. Secretary
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough

The forgoingAgstrument was acknowledged before me this ___/ A day of Januang 2015

By
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Rick Botnick, Officer and Board Chair, of Catholic Medical Center, do hereby certify that:
1. Iam the duly elected Board Chair of Catholic Medical Center, a non profit corporation;

e The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Executive

Committee of the Board of Directors of the corporation, duly held on December 18, 2014;

RESOLVED: That this corporation may enter into any and all contracts, amendments,
renewals, revisions or modifications thereto relating to Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening

program, with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and

Human Services, Division of Public Health Services.

RESOLVED: That the President & CEQ is hereby authorized on behalf of this corporation to

enter into said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and

other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may

deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate. Joseph Pepe, MD is the duly elected President &

CEO of the corporation.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and effect

as of December 18, 2014;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of the corporation

this 18" day of December, 2014. /7

-

’ Rlck Botnick, Chair
CMC Board of Directors

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 18™ day of December, 2014 by

Rick Botnick.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
12/01/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Attn: Boston.certrequest@Marsh.com  Fax: 212-9484377

PRODUCER ﬁgm’z{‘m
MARSH USA, INC. RAME. FAX
99 HIGH STREET (A/C, No):
E-MAIL
BOSTON, MA 02110 B DORESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
715651-GAUWP-14-15 INSURER A : 710 Select Insurance Company
NS RED MG HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. surer s : VA NA
100 MCGREGOR STREET INSURER ¢ ; N/A NIA
MANCHESTER, NH 03102 INSURER D : Safety National Casualty Corp. 15108
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-006971355-01 REVISION NUMBER:6

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDLSUBR]

INSR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/DD/YYYY) | (AM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY 2-22596GL 07/01/2014 07/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 3 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES {Ea oocurence) | $ 50,000
J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 3,000,000
GEN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 3,000,000
X | poLicy RO LOC $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (CETQE%E%)S INGLE LimT $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED :
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I | RETENTION $ $
D | WORKERS COMPENSATION SP 4051216 07/01/2014 07/01/2015 WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS [ ER 330,000
gg; (F:’ROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE IE] NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ A
ICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory in NH) SIR $450,000 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § b
A |PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 2-22596 07/01/2014 07/01/2015 PER CLAIM 1,000,000
AGGREGATE 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE
CONCORD, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

Audan. Inelloif—

Susan Molloy
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Catholic Medical Center

Mission Statement of Catholic Medical Center:

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope
in a manner that offers innovative high quality services, compassion, and
respect for the human dignity of every individual who seeks or needs our
care as part of Christ’s healing ministry through the Catholic Church.
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

1



Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2014, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter
Prior Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2013, were audited by other auditors whose report dated October 30, 2013 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24,
2014 on our consideration of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Catholic Medical Center and
Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Baker f\)amr\?l-bcs

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
September 24, 2014



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable from patients, less allowances
of $21,454,883 in 2014 and $20,755,178 in 2013
Inventories
Amounts due from affiliates
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Notes receivable, less allowance of $800,000
in 2014 and 2013
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Intangible assets and other

Assets whose use is limited:
Pension and insurance obligations
Board designated and donor restricted investments
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements

Total assets

2014 201
$ 49,502,444 ' $ 79,629,091
26,173,541 1,035,035
29,270,115 26,183,203
2,010,411 1,906,945
1,060 1,121
4,059,472 3.412,225
111,017,043 112,167,620
72,977,392 72,365,670
72,648 147,577
810,003 892,253
8.024.989 7,390,524
8,907,640 8,430,354
14,246,337 12,688,351
91,473,836 78,816,899
6.080,586 4,979,061
111.800.759 96.484.311
$304,702,834  $289,447,955



Current liabilities:

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors

Amounts due to affiliates
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Accrued pension and other liabilities, less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (note 14)

Net assets:

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

201 201
$ 15,145,165 § 15,318,627
14,188,183 12,623,741
10,125,881 11,345,115
1,311,372 2,390,126
3,351.633 2,076,787
44,122,234 43,754,396
68,664,176 77,542,026
66,269,681 69,554,170
179,056,091 190,850,592
116,956,183 91,123,519
528,802 191,861
8,161,758 7.281.983
125,646,743 98,597,363
$304,702,834 $289,447,955



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowances and discounts
Provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenues less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue
Disproportionate share funding

Total revenues
Expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Total expenses
Income from operations
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income
Net realized gains on sale of investments
(Loss) gain on sale of property and equipment
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Total nonoperating gains, net
Excess of revenues and gains over expenses
Unrealized appreciation on investments
Assets released from restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Increase in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets at beginning of year

Unrestricted net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

014

201

$323,608,207 $312,030,757

(23,778.708)

(26.957.932)

299,829,499 285,072,825
9,202,827 7,339,925
3,136.409 —

312,168,735 292,412,750

151,040,530 140,475,793

108,712,500 101,919,246

13,865,109 9,759,737
10,312,228 10,655,743
3.306.829 3,122,464
287,237,196 265,932,983
24,931,539 26,479,767
1,477,062 2,553,756
5,242,633 1,052,954
(43,175) 7,150

b (713.452)
6,676,520 2,900,408
31,608,059 29,380,175
6,901,638 6,018,132
142,525 3,500
(1,696,942) 13,754,116

(11.122,616) (11,840.500)
25,832,664 37,315,423
91.123.519 53.808.096

$116956,183 §$_91,123.519



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Balances at June 30, 2012

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses
Investment income
Changes in interest in perpetual trust
Restricted contributions
Unrealized appreciation on investments
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Assets released from restriction

used for operations
Assets released from restriction

used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost

Balances at June 30, 2013

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses
Investment income
Changes in interest in perpetual trust
Restricted contributions _
Unrealized appreciation on investments
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Assets released from restriction

used for operations
Assets released from restriction

used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost

Balances at June 30, 2014

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

$ 53,808,096 $ 353,996 $6,693,072 $ 60,855,164

29,380,175 - - 29,380,175
- 1,407 279 1,686
- - 466,556 466,556
- 72,536 - 72,536
6,018,132 - 122,076 6,140,208
(11,840,500) - ~  (11,840,500)
- (232,578) - (232,578)

3,500 (3,500) - -
13.754.116 - - 13,754,116

37,315,423 (162.135) 588,911 37,742,199

91,123,519 191,861 7,281,983 98,597,363

31,608,059 - - 31,608,059
- 1,083 3,346 4,429

- - 740,821 740,821

- 500,599 - 500,599
6,901,638 - 135,608 7,037,246
(11,122,616) - - (11,122,616)
- (22,216) - (22,216)

142,525 (142,525) _ _

(1.696.942) - - (1.696,942)
25.832.664 336,941 879775 _27.049.380

$116,956,183 $_528,802 $8,161,758 $125,646,743



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating activities:
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net realized gains on sales of investments
Increase in interest in perpetual trust
Unrealized appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment
Cash premium received upon issuance of bonds
Bond discount/premium amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Amounts due from/to affiliates
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Accrued pension and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Payments received from notes receivable
Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Net cash used by investing activities

Financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of financing costs
Settlement of interest rate swap
Repayment of note payable
Payments on capital leases
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Net cash used by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

2014

201

§ 27,049,380 § 37,742,199

10,312,228 10,434,687
1,696,942  (17,740,405)
11,122,616 11,840,500
(505,028) (74,222)
(5,242,633)  (1,052,954)
(740,821) (466,556)
(7,037,246)  (6,140,206)
(136,466) 1,820,295
43,175 (7,150)
- 2,974,382
(306,308) -
(3,086,912) 4,562,368
(103,466) (612,997)
(647,247) 57,640
(1,078,693) 2,847,672
(699,194) 8,672,954
(173,462) 1,179,785
1,564,442 (707,158)
(1,219,234) 2,425,111
(8.138.339) (18.088.252)
22,673,234 39,667,693
(10,393,653)  (6,927,400)
- 7,150
74,929 71,282
(1,101,525) 188,955
38,286,989 23,517,637
(64,619.718)  (24.827.427)
(37,752,978)  (7,969,803)
(1,415,000)  (30,840,956)
- 35,004,339
(2,327,000) -
- (6,000,000)
(687,315) (661,786)
505,028 74,222
(11.122.616)  (11,840.500)
(15,046,903)  (14,264.681)
(30,126,647) 17,433,209



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Assets acquired under capital lease agreement

See accompanying notes.

014 2013
$ (30,126,647) $ 17,433,209
79.629.091 62,195,882

$_49,502,444 $_79,629.091

$ 399480 $ -




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Organization

The consolidated financial statements for Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary include the accounts
of Catholic Medical Center (the Medical Center), a voluntary not-for-profit acute care hospital based in
Manchester, New Hampshire, and its subsidiary, CMC Associates. During 2005, control of CMC
Associates was transferred to the Medical Center. Subsequent to year end, CMC Associates was
formally dissolved and all assets and liabilities were transferred to the Medical Center. The Medical
Center, which primarily serves residents of New Hampshire and northern Massachusetts, is controlled
by CMC Healthcare System, Inc. (the System), a not-for-profit corporation which functions as the
parent company and sole member of the Medical Center.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Medical Center and CMC
Associates. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The primary estimates relate to collectibility of receivables from patients and third-party payors,
amounts payable to third-party payors, accrued compensation and benefits, conditional asset retirement
obligations, and self-insurance reserves.

Income Taxes

The Medical Center and CMC Associates are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and are exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the Medical Center's
tax positions and concluded the Medical Center has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have
any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements. With few exceptions, the Medical Center is no
longer subject to income tax examination by the U.S. federal or state tax authorities for years before
2011.



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Performance Indicator

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses and
nonoperating gains and losses. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be
ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as operating revenue and
expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains or losses, which
include realized gains and losses on the sales of securities and property and equipment, unrestricted
investment income, and debt extinguishment losses.

Charity Care and Community Benefits

The Medical Center has a formal charity care policy under which patient care is provided to patients
who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Medical
Center does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they are
not reported as revenues. The Medical Center rendered charity care in accordance with this policy,
which, at established charges, amounted to $38,395,611 and $29,024,262 for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The estimated costs of providing charity services are based on a calculation which applies a ratio of
costs to charges to the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to charity patients.
The ratio of cost to charges is calculated based on the Medical Center's total expenses divided by gross
patient service revenue. Of the Medical Center's $287 million and $266 million total expenses
reported in 2014 and 2013, respectively, an estimated $12.6 million and $9.4 million, respectively,
arose from providing services to charity patients.

The Medical Center provides community service programs, without charge, such as the Medication
Assistance Program, Community Education and Wellness, Patient Transport, and the Parish Nurse
Program. The costs of providing these programs amounted to $789,719 and $934,075 for the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Medical Center to credit risk consist primarily of cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is
minimized by the Medical Center's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term
maturities issued by highly rated financial institutions. The Medical Center's accounts receivable are
primarily due from third-party payors and amounts are presented net of expected contractual
allowances and uncollectible amounts. The Medical Center's investment portfolio consists of
diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments that exceeded 10% of
investments include the SSGA S&P 500 Tobacco Free Fund as of June 30, 2014.

10



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when
purchased and investments in overnight deposits at various banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude
amounts whose use is limited by board designation and amounts held by trustees under revenue bond
and other agreements. The Medical Center maintains approximately $44,000,000 and $74,000,000 at
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of its cash and cash equivalent accounts with a single institution.
The Medical Center has not experienced any losses associated with deposits at this institution.

Included in cash and cash equivalents is an amount held in escrow by the Royal Bank of Canada
Capital Markets (RBCCM) in the amount of $3,370,000 at June 30, 2013. These funds were on
deposit with RBCCM as a condition of the Medical Center's 2005 swap agreement. As discussed in
Note 5, the 2005 swap agreement was terminated during 2014 and, therefore, these funds are no longer
restricted at June 30, 2014.

Net Patient Service Revenues and Accounts Receivable

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors
and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. Changes in these estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the
year in which they occur.

The Medical Center recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients
who have third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For
uninsured patients, the Medical Center provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest
private insurance payors.

The provision for doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected
net collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage,
and other collection indicators. The Medical Center records a provision for doubtful accounts in the
period services are provided related to self-pay patients, including both uninsured patients and patients
with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for a pottion of their
balance.

Periodically throughout the year, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon historical write-off experience. The results of this review are then used to make
any modifications to the provision for doubtful accounts to establish an appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts. The decrease in the provision for doubtful accounts in 2014 is driven primarily by
revisions to the Medical Center's charity care policy eligibility. Accounts receivable are written off
after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with internal policies.

11



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or
market.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation,
less accumulated depreciation. The Medical Center's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and charge maintenance and repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of the related assets. The provisions for depreciation and amortization have been determined
using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated
useful lives, which range from 2 to 40 years. Assets which have been purchased but not yet placed in
service are included in construction in progress and no depreciation expense is recorded.

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

The Medical Center recognizes the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset
retirements in the period in which the obligation is incurred, in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (ASC 410-20). When the liability is
initially recorded, the cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the carrying
amount of the related long lived asset. The liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the
capitalized cost associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset. Upon settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset
retirement obligation and the liability recorded is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated
statement of operations.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, $1,101,617 and $1,074,604, respectively, of conditional asset retirement
obligations are included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Goodwill

The Medical Center reviews its goodwill and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the
carrying amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred,
these assets are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013.

12



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement Benefits

The Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement benefits for certain
employees of the Medical Center and certain employees of an affiliated organization who have attained
age twenty-one and work at least 1,000 hours per year. The Plan consists of a benefit accrued to
July 1, 1985, plus 2% of plan year earnings (to legislative maximums) per year. The Medical Center's
funding policy is to contribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements
set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, plus such additional amounts as
may be determined to be appropriate from time to time. The Plan is intended to constitute a plan
described in Section 414(k) of the Code, under which benefits derived from employer contributions are
based on the separate account balances of participants in addition to the defined benefits under the
Plan.

Effective January 1, 2008 the Medical Center decided to close participation in the Plan to new
participants. As of January 1, 2008, current participants continued to participate in the Plan while new
employees receive a higher matching contribution to the tax-sheltered annuity benefit program
discussed below.

During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to freeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective
December 31, 2011.

The Medical Center also maintains tax-sheltered annuity benefit programs in which it matches one half
of employee contributions up to either 2% or 3% of their annual salary, depending on date of hire. The
Medical Center made matching contributions under the program of $4,759,527 and $4,550,407 for the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

During 2007, the Medical Center created a nonqualified deferred compensation plan covering certain
employees under Section 457(b) of the Code. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer a portion
of their compensation to be held until payment in the future to the participant or his or her beneficiary.
Consistent with the requirements of the Code, all amounts of deferred compensation, including but not
limited to any investments held and all income attributable to such amounts, property, and rights will
remain subject to the claims of the Medical Center's creditors, without being restricted to the payment
of deferred compensation, until payment is made to the participant or their beneficiary. No
contributions were made by the Medical Center for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

The Medical Center also provides a noncontributory supplemental executive retirement plan covering
certain former executives of the Medical Center, as defined. The Medical Center's policy is to accrue
costs under this plan using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method" and to amortize past
service costs over a fifteen year period. Benefits under this plan are based on the participant's final
average salary, social security benefit, retirement income plan benefit, and total years of service.
Certain investments have been designated for payment of benefits under this plan and are included in
assets whose use is limited—pension and insurance obligations.

During 2007, the Medical Center created a supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain

executives of the Medical Center. The Medical Center recorded compensation expense of $60,000 and
$200,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, related to this plan.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Medical Center has an "earned time" plan. Under this plan, each qualifying employee "earns"
hours of paid leave for each pay period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations,
holidays, or illness. Hours earned but not used are vested with the employee and are paid to the
employee upon termination. The Medical Center expenses the cost of these benefits as they are earned
by the employees.

Debt Issuance Costs/Qriginal Issue Discount or Premium

The debt issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for the Medical Center's construction and
renovation programs and refinancing of prior bonds and the original issue discount or premium are
amortized using the straight-line method over the repayment period of the bonds. This approximates
the effective interest method. The original issue discount or premium is presented as a component of
bonds payable.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements,
pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which the
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes, and donor-
restricted investments.

Classification of Net Assets

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with
donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those
whose use by the Medical Center has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose.
When a donor restriction expires (i.e., when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported
in the statement of operations as either net assets released from restrictions used for operations (for
noncapital-related items and included in other revenue) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for capital (for capital-related items).

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Medical
Center in perpetuity. Income earned on permanently restricted net assets, to the extent not restricted by
the donor, including net unrealized appreciation on investments, is included in the consolidated
statement of operations as unrestricted resources or as a change in temporarily restricted net assets in
accordance with donor-intended purposes or applicable law.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See
Note 8 for further discussion regarding fair value measurements. Realized gains or losses on the sale
of investment securities are determined by the specific identification method and are recorded on the
settlement date. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenues
and gains over expenses unless the investments are classified as trading securities or losses are
considered other-than-temporary.  Interest and dividend income on unrestricted investments,
unrestricted investment income on permanently restricted investments and unrestricted net realized
gains/losses are reported as nonoperating gains.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Medical Center reported realized losses of $1,433 relating to
declines in fair value of investments that were determined by management to be other than temporary.

No such losses were reported during the year ended June 30, 2014,

Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
are recognized either in the excess of revenues and gains over expenses or net assets, depending on
whether the derivative is speculative or being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flows.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trust

The Medical Center is the beneficiary of trust funds administered by trustees or other third parties.
Trusts wherein the Medical Center has the irrevocable right to receive the income earned on the trust
assets in perpetuity are recorded as permanently restricted net assets at the fair value of the trust at the
date of receipt. Income distributions from the trusts are reported as investment income that increase
unrestricted net assets, unless restricted by the donor. Annual changes in the fair value of the trusts are
recorded as increases or decreases to permanently restricted net assets.

Investment Policies

The Medical Center's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of
invested assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets
include endowment, specific purpose and board designated (unrestricted) funds.

Endowment funds are identified as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for current or
future operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with
disciplined longer-term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant,
reasonable, or probable events.

Temporarily restricted funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by

the donor or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with
specific identified spending objectives.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to maximize total return while preserving the capital values of
the funds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to

provide a real rate of return that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon.

The Medical Center targets a diversified asset allocation that places emphasis on achieving its long-
term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the
Medical Center considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of
the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the
possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation
of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g)the investment policies of the
organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the Medical Center, from time to time, to provide a stream of
funding for the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure
that the purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual
funding to the programs. The Medical Center currently has a policy allowing interest and dividend
income earned on investments to be used for operations with the goal of keeping principal, including
its appreciation, intact.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the related expenditure is
incurred.

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The Medical Center has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. A claims-
made basis policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy term. The Medical
Center has established a reserve to cover professional liability exposure, which may not be covered by
insurance. The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess
of insurance coverage may be asserted against the Medical Center. In the event a loss contingency
should occur, the Medical Center would give it appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial
statements in conformity with accounting standards. The Medical Center expects to be able to obtain
renewal or other coverage in future periods.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic
954): Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries (ASU 2010-24), at June 30,
2014 and 2013, the Medical Center recorded a liability of $11,447,463 and $11,198,692, respectively,
related to estimated professional liability losses covered under this policy. At June 30, 2014 and 2013,
the Medical Center also recorded a receivable of $7,435,463 and $7,013,692, respectively, related to
estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts
are included in accrued pension and other liabilities, and intangible assets and other, respectively, on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The Medical Center maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insured plan. The plan
offers, among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the
Medical Center against excessive losses. The Medical Center has employed independent actuaries to
estimate the ultimate costs, if any, of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation
losses of $2,854,873 and $2,568,117 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, have been discounted at
1.25% and, in management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. At June 30,
2014, $1,281,770 and $1,573,103 is recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses and
accrued pension and other liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
At June 30, 2013, $1,166,689 and $1,401,428 is recorded within accounts payable and accrued
expenses and accrued pension and other liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. A trustee held fund has been established as a reserve under the plan.

Health Insurance

The Medical Center has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance
company which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms
of the plan and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in
time. The Medical Center is insured above a stop-loss amount of $325,000 on individual claims.
Estimated unpaid claims, and those claims incurred but not reported at June 30, 2014 and 2013 of
$1,376,638 and $1,367,289, respectively, are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets within accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Advertising Costs

The Medical Center expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately
$1,092,000 and $969,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Subsequent Events

Management of the Medical Center evaluated events occurring between the end of its fiscal year and
September 24, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Net Patient Service Revenue

The following summarizes net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30:

014 201
Gross patient service revenue $876,940,388 $821,358,777
Less contractual allowances 553,332,181 509,328,020
Less provision for doubtful accounts 23,778,708 26,957.932
Net patient service revenue $299,829.499 $285,072,825

The Medical Center maintains contracts with the Social Security Administration ("Medicare") and the
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ("Medicaid"). The Medical
Center is paid a prospectively determined fixed price for each Medicare and Medicaid inpatient acute
care service depending on the type of illness or the patient's diagnosis related group classification.
Capital costs and certain Medicare and Medicaid outpatient services are also reimbursed on a
prospectively determined fixed price. The Medical Center receives payment for other Medicaid
outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis which are settled with retroactive adjustments upon
completion and audit of related cost finding reports.

Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts
become known. The percentage of net patient service revenues earned from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs was 36% and 4%, respectively, in 2014 and 39% and 2%, respectively, in 2013.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The Medical Center believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations; compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs.

The Medical Center also maintains contracts with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance
organizations, preferred provider organizations and state and federal agencies. The basis for payment
under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per day, discounts
from established charges and fee screens. The Medical Center does not currently hold reimbursement
contracts which contain financial risk components.

The approximate percentages of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts
and provision for doubtful accounts for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 from third-party
payors and uninsured patients are as follows:

Third-Party ~ Uninsured  Total All

Payors Patients Payors
2014
Patient service revenue, net of contractual
allowance and discounts 99.1% 0.9% 100.0%
2013
Patient service revenue, net of contractual
allowance and discounts 98.5% 1.5% 100.0%
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June 30, 2014 and 2013

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2014 from major payor sources, is as follows:

Net Patient

Service
Provision Revenues
Gross Contractual for Less Provision
Patient Service Allowances Doubtful for Doubtful
Revenues and Discounts  Accounts Accounts

Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles) $325,406,225 $139,577,341 § 6,368,264 $179,460,620

Medicaid 59,490,036 47,375,535 1,831,319 10,283,182
Medicare 433,809,400 324,843,806 1,602,657 107,362,937
Self-pay 58.234,727 41,535,499 13,976,468 2,722,760

$876,940,388  $553,332,181 $23,778,708 $299,829,499

The Medical Center recognizes changes in accounting estimates for net patient service revenue and
third-party payor settlements as new events occur or as additional information is obtained. For the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, favorable adjustments recorded for changes to prior year
estimates were approximately $349,000 and $303,000, respectively.

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid enhancement
tax equal to 5.5% of net patient service revenues. The amount of tax incurred by the Medical Center
for 2014 and 2013 was $13,865,109 and $9,759,737, respectively. Disproportionate share (DSH)
funding payments from the State are recorded in operating revenues and amounted to $3,136,409 in
2014. There were no DSH funding payments received from the State in 2013.

Electronic Health Records Incentive Payments

The CMS Electronic Health Records (EHR) incentive programs provide a financial incentive for the
"meaningful use" of certified EHR technology to achieve health and efficiency goals. To qualify for
incentive payments, eligible organizations must successfully demonstrate meaningful use of certified
EHR technology through various stages defined by CMS. The Medical Center filed certain
meaningful use attestations with CMS. Revenue totaling $2,348,944 associated with these meaningful
use attestations is recorded as other revenue for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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June 30, 2014 and 2013

Property, Plant and Equipment

The major categories of property, plant and equipment at June 30 are as follows:

Useful
Lives 2014 2013
Land and land improvements 2-40 years $ 1,233,490 1,233,490
Buildings and improvements 2-40 years 75,519,929 75,493,384
Fixed equipment 3-25 years 41,496,770 41,320,996
Movable equipment 3-25years 101,721,815 93,076,588
Construction in progress 4,321,603 2,590,255
224,293,607 213,714,713
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 151,316,215  141.349.043
Net property, plant and equipment $_72,977,392 $_72,365,670

Depreciation expense amounted to $10,138,236 and $10,543,580 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

The cost of equipment under capital leases was $4,783,240 and $4,383,760 at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Accumulated amortization of the leased equipment at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was
$2,854,542 and $2,137,622, respectively. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in

depreciation and amortization expense.

Long-Term Debt and Note Pavable

Long-term debt at June 30 consists of the following:

2014 2013
New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds:
Series 2006 bonds with interest ranging from 4.875% to 5.00%
per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $405,000 to $2,680,000 through July 2036 $30,835,000 $31,225,000
Series 2012 bonds with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%
per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $1,125,000 to $2,755,000 through July 2032 34,250,000 35,275,000
65,085,000 66,500,000
Capitalized lease obligations 2,098,213 2,386,048
Unamortized original issue premiums/discounts 2,438,101 2,744,909
69,621,314 71,630,957
Less current portion (3,351,633) (2.076,787)
$66,269,681 $69.554,170
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June 30, 2014 and 2013

Long-Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued)

In May 2006, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $32,910,000 of tax-exempt
fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2006). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical Center
has granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on
existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a
minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this
covenant for the year ending June 30, 2014. The proceeds of the Series 2006 bond issue were used to
advance refund $9,010,000 of Series 2002A bonds, to provide funding for renovating additional space
and equipment at the Medical Center, and to provide a portion of the funding for the construction of a
parking garage.

In December 2012, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $35,275,000 of tax
exempt fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2012). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical
Center has granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien
on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a
minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this
covenant for the year ending June 30, 2014. The proceeds of the Series 2012 bond issue were used to
advance refund the remaining 2002A bonds, advance refund certain 2002B bonds and pay off a short
term CAN note. In addition, a $3.0 million construction fund was established to fund routine capital
purchases made in fiscal year 2013.

The Medical Center has an agreement with the Authority, which provides for the establishment of
various funds, the use of which is generally restricted to the payment of debt. These funds are
administered by a trustee, and income earned on certain of these funds is similarly restricted. One of
the funds held by the trustee is the debt service reserve fund. This fund may be used should the
Medical Center fail to meet principal and interest payments. The reserve fund requirement is the lesser
of 10% of the original principal amount less original issue discount of bonds, the maximum amount of
principal and interest due in any one future year, or 125% of the average annual debt service. Any
amounts in excess of the requirements of the fund may be transferred at the direction of the Medical
Center.

Interest paid by the Medical Center totaled $3,328,823 and $3,122,464 for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Aggregate principal payments due on the revenue bonds and capital lease obligations for each of the
five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as follows:

2015 $ 3,351,633
2016 3,418,499
2017 3,273,801
2018 3,004,896
2019 3,094,384
Thereafter 51,040,000

$67,183.213
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Long-Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued)

The scheduled principal maturities represent annual payments as required under long-term debt
repayment schedules.

The fair value of the Medical Center's long-term debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis,
based on the Medical Center's current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing
arrangements. The fair value of the Medical Center's long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease
obligations, was $66,417,070 and $66,621,268 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement dated as of January 1, 1994 by and between Optima Health, Inc.
(Optima) and the trustee for Hillcrest Terrace's (Hillcrest) Series 1994 bond issue, later transferred
from Optima to the Medical Center, the Medical Center has guaranteed to fund, up to a maximum
cumulative amount of $1,900,000, any deficiencies in Hillcrest's Debt Service Reserve Fund (the
Reserve Fund) to the extent that the Reserve Fund value, as defined, is less than $800,000. The
Medical Center has made cumulative payments of $251,564 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 under this
guarantee. The Medical Center has recorded a liability for the remaining $1,648,436 within accrued
pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 and
2013 based upon management's estimate of future obligations.

Derivatives

The Medical Center uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage interest rate risk.
During 2005, the Medical Center entered into an interest rate swap agreement to replace an existing
agreement signed in 2003. This agreement involved the exchange of fixed rate payments by the
Medical Center for variable rate payments from the counterparty without the exchange of the
underlying notional amounts. The notional amount for this agreement was $15,000,000 and the
agreement was to expire in November 2024. Under the provisions of this agreement, interest was paid
to the counterparty, by the Medical Center, at 67% of USD-LIBOR-BBA through the remainder of the
term. On June 11, 2014, the 2005 swap agreement was terminated. The Medical Center paid
$2,354,300 to settle this swap agreement, which included a swap payoff amount of $2,327,000 along
with certain termination fees.

The fair value of this derivative amounted to a liability of $2,463,466 as of June 30, 2013, which
amount was included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The changes in the fair value of the derivative of $136,466 and $1,288,350 have been
included within nonoperating investment income for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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Notes Receivable

During February 1994, Hillcrest, together with the Authority, restructured $26,000,000 of special
obligation revenue bonds (Series 1990). The bondholder consented to an amendment of the Series
1990 bond indenture, which permitted the redemption of the Series 1990 bonds at a price of 85% of the
par value thereof, or $22,100,000. The redemption was accomplished partially with the issuance of
$18,950,000 of Series 1994 revenue bonds to the Authority. The Authority then loaned, under a Loan
Agreement and Mortgage, the proceeds thereof to Hillcrest, which proceeds, after payment of certain
issuance expenses and accrued interest on the Series 1990 bonds, were used to pay a portion of the
redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. In addition, certain funds deposited into the Series 1990
Reserve Fund were paid to Fidelity Health Alliance, Inc. (the Medical Center's former parent company
and one of the organizations which formed Optima and hereinafter referred to as Optima) to repay
earlier advances. Optima then loaned $2,581,528 to Hillcrest pursuant to a subordinated loan
agreement. Hillcrest owed Optima $400,856, which was converted from a current obligation to a long-
term obligation and included in the subordinated loan agreement resulting in a total of $2,982,384
owed to Optima. In conjunction with the disaffiliation from Optima effective July 1, 2000, the
subordinated loan became payable to the Medical Center. Hillcrest used a portion of the subordinated
loan to pay a portion of the redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. Also, upon redemption of the
Series 1990 bonds, $1,500,000 from the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was transferred to the Series 1994
Reserve Fund and the remaining amount, $1,074,000, of the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was used to pay
a portion of the redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. The subordinated loan is subordinated in
all respects to the Series 1994 revenue bonds. During 2004, the subordinated loan was restructured by
the Medical Center. The principal was reduced. The new note bears interest at a stated rate of 5% per
annum. The balance receivable from Hillcrest is $947,577 and $1,018,859 at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. As of August 31, 2008, Hillcrest defaulted on their debt covenants. As a result, the
Medical Center has reserved $800,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013 against the note receivable in the
event of default. As of June 30, 2014 all payments are current.

Operating Leases

The Medical Center has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical
equipment. The Medical Center also has noncancelable leases for office space. The Medical Center
has also assumed lease obligations for physician practices that became provider based. Certain real
estate leases are with related parties. Total rent expense paid to related parties for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $1,189,433 and $1,162,445, respectively. Rental expense under all leases
for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $5,296,928 and $6,239,430, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

2015 $ 3,641,099
2016 2,840,619
2017 2,636,282
2018 2,581,271
2019 1,852,452
Thereafter 8.907.607

$22,459,330
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited

Investments and assets whose use is limited, are comprised of the following at June 30:

2014 2013
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,904,821 § 6,904,821 § 5,759,649 § 5,759,649
U.S. federated treasury obligations 6,080,585 6,080,585 4,979,061 4,979,061
Marketable equity securities 31,492,795 25,952,651 21,741,518 18,021,612
Fixed income securities 40,665,955 40,352,584 10,744,033 10,675,990
Private investment funds 52,830,144 34,865,098  54,295.084 41,301,718

$137,974300 §114,155.739 §$97,519,345 $80,738,030

Unrestricted investment income is summarized as follows:

201 2013
Nonoperating investment income $ 1,477,062 $2,553,702
Realized gains on sales of investments, net 5,242,633 1,052,954
Change in unrealized appreciation on investments 6.901,638 6,018,132

$13,621,333 $9,624.788

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement data. In determining fair value, the use of
various valuation approaches, including market, income and cost approaches, is permitted.

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from sources independent
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own assumptions about how market
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of
inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to
measure fair value.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used by the Medical Center for financial instruments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. The three levels of inputs are as follows:

Level ] — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data.

24



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques.
The three valuation techniques are as follows:

» Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities;

» Cost approach — Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e.,
replacement cost); and

» Income approach — Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on
market expectations (including present value techniques).

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assets and liabilities has been consistent. The following is a description of the valuation

methodologies used:

U.S. Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The Medical Center holds
fixed income mutual funds and exchange traded funds, governmental and federal agency debt
instruments, municipal bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as
Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Marketable Equity Securities
Marketable equity securities are valued based on stated market prices and at the net asset value of
shares held by the Medical Center at year end, which generally results in classification as Level 1

within the fair value hierarchy.

Private Investment Funds

The Medical Center invests in private investment funds that consist primarily of limited partnership
interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly comprised
of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other less liquid
investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the Medical
Center values these investments, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata interest in
the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each investment
manager from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly. These investments are classified as
Level 2 or 3, depending on the redemption terms.

Medical Center management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in
the consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions. Because of inherent uncertainty of
valuation of certain private investment funds, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may
differ from actual values, and differences could be significant. Management believes that reported fair
values of its private investment funds at the consolidated balance sheet dates are reasonable.
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June 30, 2014 and 2013

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

The following fair value hierarchy tables present information about the Medical Center's assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input to

the valuations.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2014

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,904,821 $ - $ - § 6,904,821
U.S. federated treasury obligations 6,080,585 - - 6,080,585
Marketable equity securities 31,492,795 - - 31,492,795
Fixed income securities 40,665,955 - - 40,665,955
Private investment funds - 42,729,029 10,101,115 52,830,144
Total assets at fair value $85,144,156 $42,729.029 $10,101,115 $137.974.300
2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,759,649 §$ - $ - $ 5,759,649
U.S. federated treasury obligations 4,979,061 - - 4,979,061
Marketable equity securities 21,741,518 - - 21,741,518
Fixed income securities 10,744,033 - - 10,744,033
Private investment funds - 42,168,226 12,126,858 54,295,084
Total assets at fair value $43.224261 $42,168,226 $12,126,858 $_97,519.345
Interest rate swap $ - § —  $.2463466 $_ 2,463,466

The following tables present the assets and liabilities carried at fair value as of June 30, 2014 and 2013
that are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The tables reflect gains and losses for the
year. Additionally, both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value
of positions that the Medical Center has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the
unrealized gains and losses for assets and liabilities within Level 3 may include changes in fair value
that were attributable to both observable and unobservable inputs.

Private Interest
Investment Rate

Funds Swap
Balance at June 30, 2012 $10,719,307 $(3,751,816)
Unrealized gains 1,407,551 1.288.350
Balance at June 30, 2013 $12,126,858 $(2,463.466)
Balance at June 30, 2013 $12,126,858 $(2,463,466)
Realized gains 724,352 ~
Sales (3,019,817) -
Swap termination — 2,327,000
Unrealized gains 269,722 136.466
Balance at June 30, 2014 $10,101,115 $ -
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

There were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

In 2009, new guidance related to the Fair Value Measurement standard was issued for estimating the
fair value of investments in investment companies (limited partnerships) that have a calculated value of
their capital account or net asset value (NAV) in accordance with or in a manner consistent with U.S.
GAAP. The Medical Center is permitted under U.S. GAAP to estimate the fair value of an investment
at the measurement date using the reported NAV without further adjustment unless the Medical Center
expects to sell the investment at a value other than NAV, or if the NAV is not calculated in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. The Medical Center's investments in private investment funds are recorded at fair
valued based on the most current NAV.

The Medical Center performs additional procedures, including due diligence reviews on its
investments in investment companies and other procedures with respect to the capital account or NAV
provided, to ensure conformity with U.S. GAAP. The Medical Center has assessed factors including,
but not limited to, managers' compliance with the Fair Value Measurement standard, price
transparency and valuation procedures in place, the ability to redeem at NAV at the measurement date,
and existence of certain redemption restrictions at the measurement date.

The guidance also requires additional disclosures to enable users of the financial statements to
understand the nature and risk of the Medical Center's investments. Furthermore, investments which
can be redeemed at NAV by the Medical Center on the measurement date or in the near term are
classified as Level 2. Investments which cannot be redeemed on the measurement date or in the near
term are classified as Level 3. In accordance with this guidance, the table below sets forth additional
disclosures for investment funds valued based on net asset value to further understand the nature and
risk of the investments by category as of June 30, 2014.

Unfunded Redemption

Category Fair Value = Commitments Frequency Notice Period
Private investment funds —
Level 2 $42,729,029 § - Daily/monthly 2-30 day notice
Private investment funds —
Level 3 10,101,115 - Quarterly/ 1-2 year lockup with
annually 60-95 day notice
Investment Strategies

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of these investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable source of
income, preserve capital, reduce the volatility of the total portfolio, and hedge against the risk of
deflation or protracted economic contraction.
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

Marketable Equity Securities

The primary purpose of equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth of
income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of
loss. The total equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to economic sector,
industry, number of holdings and other characteristics, including style and capitalization. The Medical
Center may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have distinct investment
styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it is expected that the
combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

Private Investment Funds

The primary purpose of private investment funds is to provide further portfolio diversification and to
reduce overall portfolio volatility by investing in strategies that are less correlated with traditional
equity and fixed income investments. Private investment funds may provide access to strategies
otherwise not accessible through traditional equities and fixed income such as derivative instruments,
real estate, distressed debt and private equity and debt.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses,
amounts payable to third-party payors and long-term debt. The fair value of all financial instruments
other than long-term debt approximates their relative book values as these financial instruments have
short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value. See Note 5 for disclosure
of the fair value of long-term debt.

Retirement Benefits

A reconciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan and the Medical Center's
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and a statement of funded status of the plans as of June 30 for
both years follows:

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan
2014 2013 2014 2013
Changes in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations
at beginning of year $(201,367,482) $(206,954,442) $(5,136,340) $(5,518,307)
Service cost (625,000) (425,000) - -
Interest cost (9,576,309) (9,191,398) (197,511) (191,289)
Benefits paid 4,551,682 4,049,093 489,771 493,738
Actuarial (loss) gain (15,480,194) 10,544,845 (274,190) 79,518
Expenses paid 654,743 609.420 - -
Projected benefit obligations
at end of year (221,842,560) (201,367,482) (5,118,270)  (5,136,340)
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Changes in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets
at beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Fair value of plan assets
at end of year

Funded status of plan at June 30

Amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets
consist of:

Current liability
Noncurrent liability

Net amount recognized

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Catholic Medical Center
Pension Plan

Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

201 013 2014 2013
$ 143,507,222 §$ 123,009,403 $ - 3 -
24,687,908 15,156,332 - -
10,000,000 10,000,000 489,771 493,738
(4,551,682)  (4,049,093)  (489,771)  (493,738)
(654,743) (609.420) - =
172.988.705 _143.507.222 - -

$_(48,853,.855) $_(57,860,260) $(5,118270) $(5.136,340)

$ $ - 3

(57,860.260)

(446,695) ' $
(4.671.575)

(476,623)

(48.853.855) (4.659.717)

$_(48,853,855) $_(57,860,260) $(5.118,270) $(5.136,340)

The net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from unrestricted net assets
into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $1,926,177.

The current portion of accrued pension costs included in the above amounts for the Medical Center
amounted to $446,695 and $476,623 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and has been included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses.

The amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist

of:

Amounts recognized in the consol-
idated balance sheets — total plan:
Unrestricted net assets:
Net loss

Net amount recognized

Catholic Medical Center
Pension Plan
2014 2013

Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan
2014 2013

$(66.012.550) $(65.854.393) $(2.538.078) $(2.392.006)

$(66,012,550) $(65,854,393) $(2,538,078) $(2,392,006)
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013:

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan

2014 2013 2014 2013
Service cost $ 625000 $ 425,000 $ - $ -
Interest cost 9,576,309 9,191,398 197,511 191,289
Expected return on plan assets (10,872,113)  (10,083,371) - -
Amortization of actuarial loss 1,506,242 1,750,242 128,118 132,603
Net periodic pension cost §__ 835438 $_ 1,283,269 $325,629 $323,892

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net loss (gain) $ 1,664,398 §$(15,617,806) $ 274,190 § (79,518)
Amortization of actuarial loss (1,506,242) (1,750,242) (128.118) (132,603
Net amount recognized §__158,156 $(17,368,048) $_146,072 $(212,121)

The investments of the plans are comprised of the following at June 30:

Target Allo- Catholic
cation Fiscal Medical Center
Year Ending Pension Plan

June 30, 2014 2014 2013

Marketable equity securities 70.0% 71.4%  62.5%
Fixed income securities 20.0 17.1 27.8
Other 10.0 11.5 9.7

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The assumption for the long-term rate of return on plan assets has been determined by reflecting
expectations regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, with consideration given to
the distribution of investments by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual asset
class.
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at
June 30 are as follows:

Pre-1987
Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive
Pension Plan Retirement Plan
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 437% 4.82% 3.53% 3.96%
Rate of compensation increase N/A 4.00 N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan's net periodic
benefit costs for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

Pre-1987
Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive
Pension Plan Retirement Plan
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 4.82% 4.46% 3.96% 3.57%
Rate of compensation increase N/A 4.00 N/A N/A
Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.50 7.50 N/A N/A

The expected employer contributions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 are not expected to be
significant.

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years
ending June 30 are:

Pre-1987
Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive
Pension Plan Retirement Plan

2015 $ 5,820,272 $ 444,612
2016 6,417,712 433,859
2017 7,102,486 422,265
2018 7,871,031 409,779
2019 -2022 50,962,473 1,831,651

The Medical Center contributed $10,000,000 and $489,771 to the Catholic Medical Center Pension
Plan and the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, respectively, for the year ended
June 30, 2014. The Medical Center plans to make any necessary contributions during the upcoming
fiscal 2015 year to ensure the plans continue to be adequately funded given the current market
conditions.

31



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014 and 2013

Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The following fair value hierarchy tables present information about the financial assets of the above
plans measured at fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input
valuation as of June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2014

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5917,865 $ - $ - $ 5,917,865
Marketable equity securities 41,852,880 - - 41,852,880
Fixed income securities 27,930,067 - - 27,930,067
Private investment funds - 84,715,189 12,572,704 97.287.893
Total assets at fair value $75,700,812 $84,715,189 $12,572,704 $172,988,705
2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5335517 $ - $ -~ $ 5,335,517
Marketable equity securities 29,604,402 - - 29,604,402
Fixed income securities 17,868,480 17,868,480
Private investment funds - 79.244.125  11.454.698 90,698.823
Total assets at fair value $52,808,399 $79,244,125 $11,454,698 $143,507,222

The following table presents the assets carried at fair values at June 30, 2014 and 2013 that are
classified at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The table reflects gains and losses for the year,
including gains and losses on assets that were transferred to Level 3 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.
Additionally, both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of
positions that the Medical Center has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the unrealized
gains and losses for assets within Level 3 may include changes in fair value that were attributable to
both observable and unobservable inputs.

Fair Value Measurement Using
Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Private Investment Funds

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $11,454,698 $10,099,408
Realized gains 720 -
Unrealized gains 1,136,859 1,355,290
Sales (19,573) -
Balance, end of year $12,572,704 $11,454,698
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Related Party Transactions

During 2014 and 2013, the Medical Center made and received transfers of net assets (to) from
affiliated organizations as follows:

2014 2013
Alliance Health Services $ (3,550,000) $ (3,850,000)
Physician Practice Associates (8,596,500) (10,450,500)
Alliance Ambulatory Service 2,485,000 2,575,000
Alliance Resources (1,419,116) -
NH Medical Laboratory (42,000) (115.000)

$(11,122,616) $(11,840.500)

The Medical Center enters into various other transactions with the aforementioned related
organizations as well as certain other related organizations. The net effect of these transactions was an
amount due to affiliates of $1,310,312 and $2,389,005 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. See
Note 7 for related party leasing activity.

Functional Expenses

The Medical Center provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location
including inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses related to providing these services are as
follows at June 30:

201 2013
Health care services $239,319,402 $222,183,671
General and administrative 47.917.794 43,749,300

$287,237,196 $.265,932,971

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Medical Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-
party payors is as follows at June 30:

2014 2013
Medicare 40% 40%
Medicaid 15 8
Commercial insurance and other 17 19
Patients (self pay) 14 19
Anthem Blue Cross _14 _14

100% 100%
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Endowments

In July 2008, the State of New Hampshire enacted a version of UPMIFA (the Act). The new law,
which had an effective date of July 1, 2008, eliminates the historical dollar threshold and establishes
prudent spending guidelines that consider both the duration and preservation of the fund. As a result of
this enactment, subject to the donor's intent as expressed in a gift agreement or similar document, a
New Hampshire charitable organization may now spend the principal and income of an endowment
fund, even from an underwater fund, after considering the factors listed in the Act.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the
following:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total
2014
Donor-restricted funds 3 - $528,802 $8,161,758 $ 8,690,560
Board-designated funds 82,783.276 - - 82,783.276
Total funds $82,783,276 $528,802 $8.161,758 $91,473,836
2013
Donor-restricted funds $ - $191,861 $7,281,983 $ 7,473,844
Board-designated funds 71.343.055 - - 71,343,055
Total funds $71,343,055 $191.861 $7,281,983 $78,816,899

Changes in endowment net assets consisted of the following for the fiscal years ended June 30:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total

Balance at June 30, 2012 $64,054,092 § 353,996 $6,693,072 $71,101,160
Investment return:

Investment income 767,221 1,407 279 768,907

Net appreciation (realized

and unrealized) 5,764,154 - 588.632 6,352,786

Total investment gain 6,531,375 1,407 588,911 7,121,693
Contributions 754,088 72,536 - 826,624
Appropriation for operations - (232,578) - (232,578)
Appropriation for capital 3.500 (3.500) - —
Balance at June 30, 2013 71,343,055 191,861 7,281,983 78,816,899
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June 30, 2014 and 2013

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total

Balance at June 30, 2013 $71,343,055 $ 191,861 $7,281,983 $78,816,899
Investment return:

Investment income 595,595 1,083 3,346 600,024

Net appreciation (realized

and unrealized) 10,702,101 - 876,429 11,578,530

Total investment gain 11,297,696 1,083 879,775 12,178,554
Contributions - 500,599 - 500,599
Appropriation for operations - (22,216) - (22,216)
Appropriation for capital 142,525 (142.525) - -
Balance at June 30, 2014 $82,783,276 $ 528,802 $8,161,75 $91,473,836

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Medical Center to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been
threatened against the Medical Center. The Medical Center intends to defend vigorously against these
claims. While ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indeterminable, it is
management's opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition of the Medical Center.

Regulatory

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and
allegations concerning possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and
regulations, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as significant
repayments for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations are
subject to government review and interpretations as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted
at this time.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Pass Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through New Hampshire
Hospital Association:
Hospital Preparedness Program

Pass-through City of Manchester Department
of Health:

Consolidated Health Centers

Maternal and Child Health Services
Block Grant to the States

Patient-Centered Medical Home
(PCMH) Grant

Outreach Enrollment Grant

Pass-through State of New Hampshire
Dept. of Health and Human Services:
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program
Community-Based Oral Health Services

Pass-through National Health Care for the
Homeless Council, Inc.:
Community Health Workers and
Health Care for the Homeless

Total expenditures of federal awards

See notes to this schedule.

05-95-90-902010-5190-102-500731

05-95-90-902010-5659-102-500731
05-95-90-902010-4527-102-500731

36

Pass-Through
Award Number

N/A

H80CS00002

H80CS00002
H80CS00002

1C1CMS330981

Federal

CFDA Federal

Number Expenditures
93.889 $ 35,376
93.224 562,489
93.994 6,116
93.527 14,412
93.527 80,168
93.283 91,329
93.991 16,137
93.610 46,812

$852,839
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Year Ended June 30, 2014

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) summarizes the
federal grant activity of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary (the Medical Center) for the year
ending June 30, 2014, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The Schedule includes all
applicable federal grants for the Medical Center. The information in the Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Since the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the
Medical Center, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, results of operations,
changes in net assets or cash flows of the Medical Center.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contract and similar agreements
entered into directly between the Medical Center and agencies and departments of the federal
government and all subawards to the Medical Center by nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal
grants, contracts and similar agreements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures for direct costs are recognized as incurred using the accrual method of accounting and
the cost accounting principles contained in the OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, as applicable. Under these cost principles, certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Expenditures include only direct costs, as the Medical
Center did not negotiate any indirect cost rate with the awarding agencies.

Pass-Through Awards

The Medical Center receives certain federal awards in the form of pass-through awards. Such amounts
received as pass-through awards are specifically identified on the Schedule.
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and
Subsidiary (the Medical Center), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 24, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Medical
Center's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
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Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Medical Center's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Baker f\)amn?hbcs

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
September 24, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary's (the Medical Center) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Medical Center's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2014. The Medical Center's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Medical Center's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Medical Center's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Medical Center's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Medical Center complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
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Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Medical Center is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Medical Center's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Medical Center's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated September 24, 2014 which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. We have not performed any procedures with respect to those
audited financial statements subsequent to September 24, 2014.
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Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

&J@r&mn?%ﬁ

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
October 29, 2014
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. Summary of Auditors' Results

Financia] Statements:

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
» Material weakness(es) identified?
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
+ Material weakness(es) identified?
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93224 Consolidated Health Centers

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

II. Financial Statement Findings

None.

Unmodified

yes
yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

____ Yyes

$300,000

X yes

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2014

There were no reported findings from the prior year.
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Catholic Medical Center
Board of Directors — 2014

Rick Botnick, Chair
E & R Cleaners

Maria Mongan, Vice Chair
Verizon

John G. Cronin, Esq., Secretary
Cronin, Bisson & Zalinsky, P.C.

Richard E. Ashooh, Treasurer
BAE Systems (appointed 8/14/14)

Joseph Pepe, MD,

President & CEO
Catholic Medical Center

Adele Boufford Baker
J.N. Boufford & Sons Inc.

William B. Clutterbuck, M.D.
Surgical Care Group, PC

Eleanor Wm. Dahar, Esq.
Dahar & Dahar Law Offices

Raef Fahmy, DPM
Catholic Medical Center

Daryl J. Cady, CPA

Home Health & Hospitals (resigned 8/13/14)

Updated: August 14,2014

* Preferred address

Joseph Graham, Immediate Past Chair
Clear Channel Media & Entertainment

Powen Hsu, M.D.
New Era Medicine

Susan D. Huard, Ph.D.
Manchester Community College

Neil Levesque
NH Institute of Politics

Patrick A. Mahon, MD,
President Medical Staff
Surgical Care Group

Diane Murphy Quinlan, Esq.
Bishop’s Delegate for Health Care
Diocese of Manchester

Msgr. John P. Quinn
St. Elizabeth Seton Parish

Keith A. Stahl, MD
Family Health & Wellness Center

Fr. Patrick Sullivan O.S.B, RN
St. Anselm College / Abbey
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CURRICULUM VITAE

JOSEPH PEPE, MD

ADDRESS

Business:
100 McGregor Street
Manchester, NH. 03102

EMPLOYMENT

President & CEO
CMC Healthcare System
August 30, 2012 to Present

President & CEO
Catholic Medical Center, Manchester, NH
August 30, 2012 to Present

Chief Executive Officer of Healthcare System including: 330 bed acute care hospital;
Physician Practice Associates employing 40 physicians; Bedford Ambulatory Surgery
Center (BASC), an LLC with 50% ownership with 40 surgeons, and St. Peter’s Home,
New Hampshire’s largest day care center. Catholic Medical Center is the home of the
New England Heart Institute, serving over 100 communities state wide.

Interim President/CEO
CMC Healthcare System and Catholic Medical Center
January 12, 2012

CMC Vice President of Medical Affairs/Chief Medical Officer
Catholic Medical Center
(1999 to August 2012)

As Vice President of Medical Affairs/Chief Medical Officer reporting to the CEO and
worked with nursing leadership, medical staff leadership, and Performance Improvement
to improve quality at CMC.

Physician
CMC Primary Care Associates
(1990 —2011)

EDUCATION




1979-1983 St. Anselm College, Manchester, NH; BA
1983-1987 Tufts University School of Medicine, Boston, Ma; MD

POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING

1987-1990 Baystate Medical Center, Springfield, Ma.
- Internal Medicine Internship
- Internal Medicine Residency

ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS/TEACHING

1987-1989 Clinical Fellow of Medicine
-Tufts University School of Medicine
Lecturer, State Division, American College of Physicians
Lecturer, Mass. College of Pharmacy and Health Science (°06-08)
Lecturer, NH Organization of Nurse Leaders (2011)
Lecturer, Northern New England Society for Healthcare Risk Management (2011)

BOARD CERTIFICATION

National Board of Medical Examiners
American Board of Internal Medicine 1990, 2000, 2010

PUBLICATIONS

Fever of Unknown Origin and Eosinophilia Caused by Naproxen Induced Interstitial
Nephritis. Hospital Practice; McCue, J.D. ; Pepe, J., August 15, 1989.

A Rare Cause of Facial Nerve Paralysis. Hospital Practice; McCue, J.D. ; Pepe, J., May
30, 1990.

A Construction Worker With A Digital Eschar. Hospital Practice; Pepe, J., May 30,
1992.

Tongue Abscess: Case Report and Review. Clinical Infectious Diseases; Sands, M.;
Pepe, J.; Brown, R.B., January 16, 1993.

Managing Risk, Build a Just Culture. Health Progress, Pepe, J.; Cataldo, P.J., July
August, 2011.

McGregor Street Journal editor; Over 40 articles available on request (02-present)



Paul A. Mertzic, RN, BSN, MS

Catholic Medical Center
Telephone, business (603) 663-8709, Cell (603) 759-8125, e-mail pmertzic@cme-nh.org

Objective: To utilize my administrative, clinical and management skills in the development of
systems to enhance the quality of and the access to health care services for all persons.
e Leader in community, ambulatory and acute care health environments
¢  Educator - Assessment, Planning, Developing and Implementing community and
professional programs
e Health Educator
e  Strategic orientation
Experience:

1998- Present:

1995 -1998:

1981 - 1995:

1980 -1981:

1977- 1980:

Catholic Medical Center — Manchester, NH
A 300-bed community-based health care system. Re-established after the de-merger of
Optima Health

Director, Community Health Services — February 2002 to Present

Responsible for the development, planning, budgeting and implementation of the strategic
initiatives for the Community Health Service division of Catholic Medical Center.
Responsible for the development of collaborative relationships and partnerships within
the community to improve the health status of our community.

Director, Community Health and Wellness — May 1997 — February 2002
Responsible for the ongoing operations of community-based programs serving those most
in need. Responsible for creating collaborative relationships with agencies to maximize
the potential for health and wellness efforts to those most in need.

Optima Health — Manchester, NH

A community-based health care system created by the merger of two health care systems
based in Manchester, NH.

Program Manager, Community Education and Wellness

Responsible for planning, coordinating and the delivery of community-based health and
wellness services for those most in need..

Elliot Hospital — Manchester, NH
296 bed community-based acute care hospital

Director, Cardiology Services — (1990 — 1995)
Responsible for Invasive and Non-invasive Diagnostic Cardiology Testing, Cardiac
Rehabilitation, and Pacemaker Clinic.

Director, Cardiac Intermediate Care Unit — (1981- 1990)
Responsible for a 26 bed step down cardiac unit with a concentration on family education
and clinical excellence.

Catholic Medical Center
Director, Cardiac Rehabilitation
Responsible for development of inpatient and outpatient Cardiac Rehabilitation.

Elliot Hospital — Manchester, NH
Clinical Manager, Intensive Care Unit — (1978 — 1980)



1977 - 1980:

FEducation:

Responsible for daily operations of a 12-bed intensive care unit on 3-11 shift, including
staff development, evaluations, staffing and coordination.

Critical Care and Medical Surgical Staff Nurse — (1997- 1978)

Clinical responsibilities for critical care and medical surgical patients.

Easter Seals Rehabilitation Program
RN Consultant, Cardiac Rehabilitation Program
Responsible for assessment, evaluation and education of clients involved in outpatient

Cardiac Rehabilitation Program. Provided educational programs to enhance
cardiovascular knowledge of ancillary staff.

New England College, Henniker, NH - MS Organizational Management - 12/2000
NH College, Manchester, NH - Accounting and Financial Management courses

St. Anselm College, Goffstown , NH - Bachelor of Science, Nursing — 6/1977

Membership/Affiliations:

Catholic Medical Center Mission Award 2010
Good Samaritan Award in Health by Pastoral Counseling Services 2006
Healthy Manchester Leadership Council
Leadership Manchester, Class of 2004
Medical Interpretation Advisory Board/Steering Committee
Makin’ It Happen — Board of Directors 2003-2009
New Horizons of NH — Board of Directors 2003 - 2008
Kids Vote — Board of Directors 2005 - 2008
On the Road to Recovery — Board of Directors/Secretary-Treasurer 2006 - present
NH Prostate Cancer Coalition — Board of Directors 2007-2009
Governors Council on Physical Activity and Health 2007- present
Kickin’ Butts, Smoking Coalition
Regional Faculty AHA BLS/ BLS Instructor 2009 - present
New Hampshire Nurses Association

Governmental Advocacy Commission 2008 — present
American Nurses Association

Interests/Personal:

Married, three adult children
Running, Exercise, Skiing, Bicycling, Tennis, Swimming, Gardening, Kayaking
Reiki Level I Practitioner.

References available upon request.



Marie DeWitt

Catholic Medical Center
603-663-8726
mdewitt@cmce-nh.org

Experience

Education

References

Catholic Medical Center, 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102
September 1992 to present

= Community Education and Weliness Health Educator: community health
screenings, elementary school programs, strong living program, breast
education/presentations to community, BCCP site coordinator and case
manager

= Rehab RN: primary care PT nurse, w/e charge nurse, case management
of PT's

= Short Stay Unit per diem RN: care of PT’s, pre and post procedure

New England College, Henniker, NH 03242
March 1985 to June 1987

= Education Department secretary: clerical support for faculty, including
typing, shorthand, filing, phones, supervision of work-study students,
Office of Student Affairs

Kenmore Stamp Company, Milford, NH 03055
December 1975 to January 1977
= Receptionist: typing, phones, checked incoming stock

Kross, Inc., San Fernando, CA
March 1974 to January 1975

s Customer service, receptionist: typing, filing, phones, resolved customer
complaints

University of New Hampshire
» Additional RN courses

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH 03301, 1989-1992
= Associate degree in nursing

= Dean’s List, Phi Theta Kappa, Student Nurse Association, peer tutoring,
volunteer in schools and High Hopes Foundation

Clinton High School, Clinton, MA, 1965-1969
= Business courses

References are available on request.
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Kim S. Kennedy
Catholic Medical Center
195 McGregor Street, Suite LL22
Manchester, NH 03102
603-663-8705

Professional Profile;

Strong leadership, collaboration and organization skills
Experienced in program development

Emphasis on promoting healthy lifestyle choices and self-efficacy
Dedicated, energetic and enthusiastic

Excellent interpersonal skills

YV VVVY

Employment Experience:
Catholic Medical Center « Manchester, NH

Manager Community Outreach and Wellness. Community Health Services-Oct.
2012 to Present

Provide management, oversight and leadership in the assessment and identification of health

programs, services, and education needs of the community with a focus on prevention.

Responsible for managing staff of Community Health Services programs including;

Community Education and Wellness, Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program,

Medication Assistance Program and Community Benefit Reporting.

Additional responsibilities include:

e Develop an annual strategic plan for health programming for the community, schools and
businesses based upon CMC’s key initiatives and the Community Needs Assessment

e Participate in advisory groups for program planning, review and evaluation as applicable

e Assist in the preparation of the Community Health Services budget and assume financial
accountability for the budget

Coordinator Community Health Education, Community Health Services-Oct. 2008 to Oct.2012

Responsible for the coordination of health education programs and services of Community
Education and Wellness, Prime Time and the Parish Nurse Program. Manage and coordinate
the development, design, and implementation of community educational programs which focus
on improving the health of our community. Collaborate with other hospital departments,
community partners, the school district and local businesses for the purpose of addressing
community needs.

Registered Nurse/Community Health Educator, Community Education and Wellness -
1998 to 2008

Researched health related topics and developed community education programs based on this
research. Instructed a variety of health education programs for the community in an effort to



promote wellness and prevent disease and disability. Developed and coordinated various
health screenings including prostate cancer, skin cancer, osteoporosis and cholesterol. Planned
and coordinated a variety of community events.

Registered Nurse, Obesity Treatment Center - 2006 to 2007

Temporarily assisted this department during a period when they were short staffed. Assisted the
physician with the assessment and treatment of patients preparing for gastric surgery.

Registered Nurse. Rehabilitation Medicine Unit - 1996 to 1998

Provided professional nursing care for stroke, cardiac step-down and orthopedic patients in an
environment that promotes wellness by assisting each individual to regain the highest level of
functioning that is achievable.

Various Local Fitness Centers/Health Clubs
Health and Fitness Instructor - 1989 to 2009

Developed and instructed health and fitness classes including a program designed for the unfit
and higher health risk population.

Education:
New Hampshire Technical Institute « Concord, NH
Associates Degree in Nursing - 1997

Graduated with high honors. Recipient of the Goldie Crocker award of excellence.

Quinsigamond Community College * Worcester, MA
Completed various accounting and finance courses — 1978 to 1980

Licenses/Certifications:

Registered Nurse License, State of New Hampshire
Group Exercise Instructor Certification, American Council on Exercise (ACE)

References available on request



Rossana Goding

Catholic Medical Center

195 McGregor Street. Suite L1.22
Manchester, NH 03102
603-663-8704

Work Experience:
January 2014 to Present

Catholic Medical Center Community Health Services Administrative Assistant
Primary Purpose:

e Performs diversified administrative and secretarial duties in support of the
Community Health Services departments.

o Responsible for all aspects of the Community Benefit Inventory Project;
maintains database and responsible for upgrades to the software; distributes
forms, collects and enters data and files the supporting documents to justify the
quantitative figures for the annual inventory report.

¢ Provides information, support and training in all aspects of operations. Assists
with special projects within the Division of Community Health Services.

e Prepares the monthly invoices for the BCCP Program and MCHT Project and
maintains their supporting documents; works closely with Payroll, the manager of
MCHT, the manager of BCCP and Finance to ensure accuracy of these invoices.
Maintains all documentation for federal audits on the accounting of the invoices.

e Provides accounting support for grants awarded to the departments of Community
Health Services. Responsible for the fiscal audits of grants.

¢ Maintains various department databases as directed, including the Community
Benefit Inventory, Medical Interpreters (bilingual staff and Medicaid Providers),
MCHT, BCCP, CMC In-kind Donation of Equipment to Social Service Agencies.

Education:

May 2009  New Hampshire Community Technical College
Manchester, NH
Associates, Accounting

May 1991 Castle College
Manchester, NH
Associates, Business Administration



CURRICULUM VITAE

Claire Fisher ACNM Board Certified #C05890/4289
Catholic Medical Center DEA #MF0050613

CNM NH Licensure #015967-23

OB-GYN Nurse-Practitioner & RN, NH

Licensure #015967

EDUCATION

CNM, 3/91  San Jose University/Education Program Associates, School of Nursing
Nurse Midwife, Certificate Program
Major: Community Health Education

OGNP, 5/80 University of Alabama, School of Medicine
OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner, Certificate Program

RN, 5/72 Sacred Heart Hospital School of Nursing
Diploma in Nursing

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

9/09 — present OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner & Certified Nurse Midwife , Breast and Pap Smear

Clinic at Catholic Medical Center, Manchester, NH 03102

9/88 — present OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner & Certified Nurse Midwife, started nurse midwifery

practice in 1990, Dept of OB/GYN/Nurse Midwife, Dartmouth Hitchcock-
Manchester, MOB, Suite 301, 88 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102
6/81-9/88 Executive Director, Healthquarters, Inc., Beverly, MA
6/80-6/81 OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner, Manchester, Nashua, Derry and Exeter Family
Planning Clinics

10/79-6/80  Maternal and Child Health Consultant, Newfound Area Nursing Association,

Bristol, NH

6/72-4/79 Labor and Delivery Charge Nurse and Coordinator and Instructor of Prenatal and

Childbirth Education Program, Elliot Hospital, Manchester, NH

MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

ACNM American College of Nurse Midwives
CNM Hospital privileges at the Elliot Hospital and Catholic Medical Center

AWARDS



July 1990 Congressional Recognition Award — recognized by Congressman Mavroules for
outstanding service in women’s health care on the North Shore of Massachusetts

January 1988 Dorothy Bradford Award — recognized by Healthquarters as an outstanding
professional in the field of women’s health care

June 1987 Vanguard Award Nominee — recognized by North Shore Women in Business
Group as an outstanding woman leader in the field of women’s health care on the
North Shore of Massachusetts

November 1996 Nursing 86 Magazine — honored as one of fifteen nurses across the country who
has made a difference in the nursing profession

PUBLICATIONS

“Sexually Transmitted Diseases”, in Section [V, Community-Based Care Plans, Marion B.
Dolan, RN, Community and Home Health Care Plans, Springhouse Corporation,
Springhouse, Pennsylvania, 1990

Several articles in journals and newspapers regarding Women and Heart Disease

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



Susan Suther, APRN, CNM

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS
o Education Programs Associations affiliated with San Jose College, Campbell, CA
OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner & Nurse-Midwifery Education, February 1989 - May 1991
e Modesto Junior College, Modesto, CA
Associate of Science Degree - Registered Nurse, September 1982 - June 1984
« American College of Nurse-Midwives, Certification #5942, June 7, 1991

LICENSURE
o State of New Hampshire, Registered Nurse: #036774-21
e State of New Hampshire, Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner, Midwifery: #036774-23

HEALTH CARE EXPERIENCE
Dartmouth Hitchcock - Manchester
¢ Full scope Midwifery
e March 1992 - present
Family Planning, Inc., Redding, CA
e OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner
e Well Woman gynecology
e STD screening and treatment
e September 1991 - February 1992
OB/GYN Associates, Red Bluff, CA
e OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner
Student Nurse Midwifery Training
Well Woman gynecology
Antepartum, Postpartum care
Physician precepted Intrapartum care
e October 1990 - September 1991
Birth Center of Redding, Redding. CA
e OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner, May 1990 - September 1990
Student OB/GYN Nurse Practitioner Training, June 1989 - May 1990
Labor and Delivery RN
Well Woman gynecology
Antepartum, Postpartum care
Precepted training of above
Labor, delivery and postpartum care of women and normal newborns in a free-standing
birth center as an RN, June 1989 - September 1990
Family Planning Center, Inc., Redding, CA
e Precepted Nurse Practitioner training, February 1989 - May 1990
St. Elizabeth’'s Community Hospital, Red Bluff, CA
e RN Obstetrical Unit, December 1989 - May 1990
Mercy Medical Center, Redding, CA
e RN Labor & Delivery, June 1987 - December 1989
Mercy Hospital, Merced, CA
e RN Obstetrical Unit, September 1984 - June 1987

COMMITTEES
e Steering Committee Member, New Hampshire Collaborative Cesarean Reduction Project
e ACI Project, Facilitator, Cesarean Reduction Project, 1996 ~ 1999



e March of Dimes, Folic Acid Council committee member
¢ Women's Services QI Team, Elliot Hospital
¢ Waterbirth Committee, Elliot Hospital

TEACHING EXPERIENCE
e Clinical Preceptor of Nurse Midwifery students from CNEP

GUEST LECTURER
o Cesarean Section Reduction & Quality Improvement Projects, NH OB Nurse Managers
Meeting, April 1997, Concord, NH

e NH Collaborative C/S Reduction Conference, November 1997, Manchester, NH

e Holy Family Hospital & Medical Center, January 1998, Methuen, MA

e Portsmouth Regional Hospital, January 1998, Portsmouth, NH

e Live teleconference, UVM, “Strategies to Safely Reduce Cesarean Births”, April 1998,
Burlington, VT

e UVM, "Nurses and Continuous Improvement”, May 1998, Burlington, VT

o Wentworth-Douglass, “Strategies to Safely Reduce Cesarean Births”, May 1998,

Portsmouth, NH
Cambridge Health Resources, "Safely Reducing Cesarean Births”, June 1998, Boston, MA
Tri-State Conference on Cesarean Rates and the Quality of Obstetrical Care, March 1999,
Portsmouth, NH

LABOR SUPPORT
e Ausculation for Fetal Surveillance & Management of Second Stage, Elliot Hospital,
November 1998
e Ausculation for Fetal Surveillance, Elliot Hospital, November 2000
» Intermittent Ausculation, Catholic Medical Center, May 2003

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



Kate Bradbury
Sy N - - A e

Experience

Dartmouth- Hitchcock Manchester- Certified Nurse Midwife

Manchester, NH, 603-695-2900 04/2012-present

Currently work with adolescents and women of all ages and socio-economic backgrounds in the outpatient clinic setting providing
gynecological, prenatal, reproductive, and menopausal care. Also care for these women in the inpatient hospital setting managing low-risk

labor patients, delivering babies, and caring for womnen in the immediate postpartum period.

Berkshire Medical Center- Registered Nurse

Pittsfield, MA 413-447-2000 07/2008- 08/2010

¢ Worked on a 15 bed Critical Care/Respiratory Step Down Unit;

» Collaborated with medical residents in managing patient care, providing extensive wound management,
. Respiratory therapy, ventilator management and caring of central and arterial lines

¢ Worked as preceptor for new staff and nursing students

o Tulfilled a charge nurse position for 7 months

Volunteers in Medicine- Registered Nurse

Great Barrington, MA 413-528-4014 09/2009-07/2010

o Provided primary care to immigrant workers .

¢ Provided free healthcare to people living and working in the Berkshire Region who were uninsured
» Administered injections

Patient teaching, medication administration

Student Midwifery Clinical Rotations 09/2010- 1072011
Provided full prenatal, GYN, intrapartum and postpartum care to women of various ethnic and socioeconomic backgrounds in a

variety of settings including out of hospital birth centers and tertiary care hospitals.

Education
University of Massachusetts Anherst 09/2004-05/2008

Graduated Curn Laude with a Bachelors of Science Degree in Nursing.

Georgetown University, Washington, D.C. 08/2010- 12/ 2011
Masters Degree in Nursing, Midwifery and Women’s Health Nurse Practitioner Program

Skalls
American Heart BLS; American Academy of Pediatrics NRP; AWHONN Fetal Monitoring



References

Susan Wheeler, Administrative Executive; Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manclmster 603-695-2900
Claire Fisher, CNM, Midwifery Director; Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester 603-695-2900

Marie Marquis, Registered Nurse; Clinical Nurse Manager; Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester 603-695-
2900



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

o of

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES _\\Vi
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 63361-6527 Y v b icaume S
603-2714886  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4886 e Pf'bl_lc ’"liahh,scmw_

Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-0539 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Commissioner

José Thier Montero

Director
April 4, 2013
_ ' APPROVED F/C
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan DATE ’
and the Honorable Council : ' '
~ State House 4 _APPRO\_/EE:)‘ G&C #__CLL
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 ‘DATE __(Q_M/ }3
- NOT APPROVED.
REQUESTED ACTION ED

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Chronic Disease Prevention and Screening Section, Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program to enter into an agreement with Catholic Medical Center (Vendor # 177240-B002), 195
McGregor Street, Suite LL22, Manchester, NH 03102 in an amount not to exceed $184,000.00 to provide a
comprehensive screening program for the early detection of breast and cervical cancer in greater Manchester, to
be effective July 1; 2013 or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015.
Funds are available in the following account for SFY 2014 and SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further approval from Governor and Executive

Council. -

05-95-90-902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,

COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

Fiscal Year : " Class/Object i} " Class:Title ‘Job Number Total Amount
SFY 14 1.102-500731 " | Contracts for Prog Svc ..} 99080081 $92,000.00
’ . ' "Sub-Total $92,000.00
SFY 15 .. 102-500731 " Contracts for Prqg_Svc 190080081 $92,000.00 |
Sub-Total $92,000.00
Total $184,000.00
EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used to provide comprehensive screening for the early detection of breast
and cervical cancer and provide two population-based outreach initiatives in greater Manchester. Services will
occur onsite at Catholic Medical Center and through a subcontracted screening program with Elliot Hospital
through the New Hampshire Breast and Cervical Cancer Program to program eligible women. To be eligible for
the New Hampshire Breast and Cervical Cancer Program a woman must be between the ages of 21-64, low
income, uninsured or underinsured, living at or below 250% of the federal poverty level. Priority for breast
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cancer screening shall be given to women age 50-64, and priority for cervical cancer screening shall be women
who have never had a Pap test or have not had one in more than five years.

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, breast cancer is the most frequently
diagnosed cancer among women in New Hampshire and in the United States. In the years 2004-2008, there were
5,060 breast cancer cases diagnosed in New Hampshire and-902 deaths reported. In the years 2004-2008, there
were 1,010,435 cases of breast cancer in the United States and 204,779 deaths. Cervical cancer is one of the
most preventable cancers when precancerous cells are detected through a Pap test. During the years 2004-2008,
there were 215 cases of cervical cancer and 84 deaths in New Hampshire. In the years 2004-2008, there were
62,577 cases of cervical cancer in the United States and 19,779 deaths.

. .Shouldthe Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Breast and Cervical Cancer
P Program will be unable to enroll 525 women from the Manchester area in a timely and efﬁclent manner into the

' program.

Cathollc Medical Center was selected for this pro_]ect through a competitive bid process. A chucst for
_ Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and- Human Services’ web site from December 21, 2012

through January 21, 2013. In addition, a bidder’s conference was held on January 9, 2013.

There was one response to the Request for Proposals Two internal reviewers and one external reviewer
from the Dcpartment of Health and Human Services with expertise in public health, comprchenswe cancer, and
breast and cervical cancer, and cancer surveillance reviewed the proposal. All reviewersliave between one to ten
years experience in cancer prevention. The strengths and weaknesses of the proposal were discussed and
reviewers recommended that the application be funded. The Bid Summary is attached.

"As referenced in the Request for Proposals, this competiﬁvely procured Agreement has the option to
renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, avallable funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

These services were contracted previously with this agency in SFY 2012 and SFY 2013 in the amount of
$172,830. This represents an increase in funding in the amount of $11,170. in SFY 14 and SFY 15. The increase
is due to an increase in the reimbursement rate for the office visit, and requuement to provide two population-

based outreach activities.

The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement.

= 75% of all mammograms will be provided to program eligible women age 50-64 at all sites.
=  25% of all mammograms will be provided to women under age 50 at all screening sites.
20% of newly enrolled women who have never had a Pap test or have not had a Pap test in over
five years will receive a Pap test.
= Provide screening services to a minimum of 525 program eligible women each year.
* Provide two population-based outreach initiatives in greater Manchester. -
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Arca écrvcd: greater Manchester

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

73

José Thier Montero, MD
Director ~

Approvedby;‘; A\p ) :
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

IT™MAE

The Department of Health and Human Seruvices’ Mission is to join communities and families
in prouidingopportunities for citizens lo achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: . Breast and Cervical Cancer Program - Greater Manchester

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 29 Hazen Drive
Division of Public Health Services Concord, NH 03301-6504
1.4  Contractor Address

1.3  Contractor Name

Catholic Medical Center

195 McGregor Street, Suite LL22
Manchester, NH 03102

1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 118 Price Limitation
Number
603-663-8726 , June 30, 2015 [ $184,000
010-090-5659-102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
1 Bureau Chief

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4501

1.11 “ContractorRighatt

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

J05eph Repe, MD ’Prc:ﬂcaenf‘w/CfO

On Zé{ﬁ-zefore the unders:gned officer, personally appeared
", m’bﬁff name is SIgncd in block 1.11, and acknowledged

the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
that s/he executed this document il the capacity indicated in block

/Um’zgy

; 1.14’ State Agency S|gnature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
- A D‘ 0] -
M Liset-Bujne, Bureau Chief

1.16 / Approval by the N. H/Dbtfartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable}

By: Director, On:

1.17 - Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

oy %4‘ CV,,)E?W - on: (S tan, 2002

: AN R C P N Cy /‘qu"le\
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
“both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which-is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Govemnor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all ébligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State beliable for any |
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until-such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account jdentified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. '

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incuired by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts .
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race,-color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
CF.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules; régulations and ordess,
and the covenants, terms:and conditions of this Agrécment.

.7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide au
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor . -
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwnse authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

.Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,

and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. )

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: ﬁﬂ

Date: 38773



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™): .
8.1.1 fajlure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; -

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both. )

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
‘PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
" information and things déveloped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, -
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
““detajl all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contrdctor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the -
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to.the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
miaintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and .

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all

property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein; in an amount not

less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this

" Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the

expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or medification

of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and wairants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce-any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the

"laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meamng of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the ‘event any of the pmwsxons of
this Agreement-ars held by a:court 6f compefent jurisdiction to
be:contrary to atty state or Tederal iw, thé émaining:
provisions of thig: Agreement will yematn in full foxee and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: _
Date: _.




NH Department of Health and Huinan Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

Breast and Cervical Cancer Program
Greater Manchester

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Catholic Medical Center

ADDRESS: 195 McGregor Street, Suite LL22

Site Coordinator/Case Manager: Marie Dewitt, RN
TELEPHONE: 603-663-8726

The Contractor shall: ‘
The Contractor shall provide directly and, through one or more agreement(s) with other healthcare

facilities, a comprehensive screening program for the early detection of breast and cervical cancer.
Outreach to the prioritized population, education and screening services shall be included. Screening
services shall include: a clinical pelvic examination; clinical breast examination; Pap test; if appropriate
following nationally accepted screening guidelines; mammogram if appropriate, following nationally
accepted screening guidelines; and case management of all abnormal screening results. One-on-one
education sessions shall be available for each woman attending the screening program. The intended
population for clinical services shall be women ages 21 to 64, who are living at or below 250% of the
~ federal poverty level, and are uninsured or underinsured. Priority for breast cancer screening shall be
women ages 50 — 64, and priority for cervical cancer screening shall be women who have never had-a

Pap test or have not had one in over five years.

The Contractor shall carry.out the planning, organization and implementation of all components of the
program with the approval of, and in cooperation with, the Department of Health and Human Services,
Division of Public Health Services, BCCP. Representatives from the BCCP reserve the right to make
on-site monitoring visits to screening sites, upon reasonable prior notice.

1. Overall services to be provided by the Contractor shall include the following:

1.1 Identify a Site Coordinator/Case Manager to administer and oversee the provision of
breast and cervical cancer screening and case management services to the prioritized
population.

1.2 The establishment of a subcontractual agreement(s), within a mutually agreed tuneframe
to be approved by the Division of Public Health, with a mutually agreed upon number
of healthcare organization(s), to carry out breast and cervical cancer screening services
for a specified number of women within the prioritized population, in their respective,
communities.

1.3  Identification of appropriate medical resources for consultation as needed.

1.4 Assure the establishment of a list of primary care providers and specialists who are

N willing to see uninsured patients with abnormal results.

1.5  Assure that all providers of clinical services are Medicaid providers.

1.6 Oversee the completion and submission to the state office of the BCCP, an enrollment
form for each woman screened through the BCCP, a data form describing cervical

Standard Exhibits A -] Conlractor {nitials: SE

March 14, 2013
Date: /OQJ//J
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cancer screening completed, with results, a data form describing breast cancer screening
completed, with results, and a diagnostic form for any follow-up completed following
positive screening results, assuring time schedules as outlined in the Breast and Cervical
Cancer (BCCP) Policy and Procedures Manual.

1.7  Assure that case management standards outlined in the BCCP Policy and Procedures

Manual are met.
1.8  Site Coordinator or designee will attend the annual site coordinator meeting.

2. The following services shall be provided by the contractor, or through a subcontractual
agreement(s), vendor agreement(s), or memorandum(s) of agreement:

2.1 Provide screening services to a minimum of 525 eligible women each year.

2.2 Individualized education sessions performed by licensed health professional(s).

2.3 Follow-up and diagnostic procedures as clinically mdlcated to include those procedures

approved by the BCCP.

2.4  All screening services shall be provndcd to women who meet program eligibility

criteria.

2.5  All mammography screening services shall be prioritized for women ages 50 to 64,

with no less than 75% of all mammograms provided for women ages 50 to 64 and no
more than 25% of all mammograms provided for women under age 50.
2.6 All cervical cancer screening services shall be ptioritized with a target of 20% of all
newly enrolled women either never having had a Pap test or not had a Pap test in five
years.
2.7 All services shall be provided in accordance -with the BCCP Pohcy and Procedure
Manual provided to each screening site.

2.8  All reimbursement shall be based on specified Medicare Current Procedural
Terminology (CPT) code rates provided to each subcontracted screening site.

2.9 Provide outreach services to reach the intended audience, in collaboration with the
BCCP.

2.10 Collaborate with the BCCP to provide updated trammg and professmna] information to

subcontracted program staff, as needed.

2.11  All mammography facilities utilized shall be Food and Drug Administration (FDA)

certified under the Mammography Quality Standards Act (MQSA). -

2.12  All pathology laboratories utilized shall meet the standards and regulations

: promulgated by the Health Care Financing Administration under the Clinical
Laboratory Improvement Act (CLIA) of 1988.

2.13  Provide a minimum of two population-based outreach activities, promoting natlonally

accepted breast and cervical cancer screening guidelines.

3. The Contractor shall provide administrative services to include the following:

3.1  Provide for periodic monitoring of clinical quality and data, collection as stated in the
BCCP Policy and Procedures Manual through on-going site evaluation visits, chart
audits, educational activities, review of patient satisfaction surveys and other related
quality assurance activities.

3.2  Provide updated information to the BCCP of: clinic schedules; outreach and promotion
taking place; staffing at screening sites; and other pertinent information as needed.

3.3 Beavailable to meet with BCCP staff as needed throughout the contract period.

" 73.4  The contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan
and annual report format as requested by the BCCP. The BCCP shall provide the
contractor with advance notice of such changes and the contractor is not expected to
incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

Standard Exhibits A ] Contractor Initials: _55

March 14, 2013
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
| ExhibitB

Purchase of Services
Contract Price

Breast and Cervical Cancer Program
Greater Manchester

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Catholic Medical Center
ADDRESS: . 195 McGregor Street, Suite LL22

Site Coordinator/Case Manager: Marie Dewitt, RN
TELEPHONE: 603-663-8726

Vendor #177240-B002 Job #90080081 Appropriation #010-090-5659-102-500731

1. . The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses mcurred in the performance of the
servxces during the perjod of the contract shall not exceed:

$92,000 in SFY 2014, $92,000 in SFY 2015 for breast and cervical cancer screening in the greater Manchester
area, funded from 100% federal funds from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) CFDA#93.283

TOTAL: $184,000

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and expenses
including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, -as detailed in 'the
attached budgets.. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with applicable
state-and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions
or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State. )

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement shall
be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a-form satisfactory to the State for each of the Service
category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the end of the
month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be.due to the State no later
than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable
costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

6. The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service calegory through line item increases, decreases, or
the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for-that particular
Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon ‘writteri requést to and written approval by the State.
Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20™ of each contract year.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:’

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant

_or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the -Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor

or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (éxcept
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such

services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall he deemed to ohligate or require the Department to purchase services hereundcr at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,

the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shali be established;
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- 82 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

83 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the

Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of ‘application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where dppropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the agency
fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.] Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of

audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has’
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected -in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the. Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directed connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's
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responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the
recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Piragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
informafion as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by .the

Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the

Department.

13: Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this .Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums. from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resultmg s
from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement: -

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all aws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall 'be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Fomi, the’
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable to this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XTIV, (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of tlie Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehensive
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or.occurrence and $2,000,000 in the

aggreggteg
W E/(I)The contractor-certifies that it IS a 50'1{c) {3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work
-withithe State of New Hampshire:does nof exceed $500,000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, X1V, (Supp. 2006);
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims
* of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident

or occurrence. .

. S evvovy”

2 g ‘ (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
17. Renewal:

% (Supp. 2006).

As referenced in the Rgquest for, Proposals, Renewals -Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for twe- additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
. agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
' right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block'1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
- Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; .

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any-time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the Staiel 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the

Agreement. :

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions. of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the

Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to

the State as described ahove.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS - DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and

federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.
DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources

of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state Jaws, reguldtions, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may ~

be amended or revised from time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
" Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal regulations

promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provnded under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
- Standard Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:
ALTERNATIVE I- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE — CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690;, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulations were amended
and published as Patt II of the-May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require certification by
grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free
workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inférence, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of
certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certification set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or
violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner .
NH Department of Health and Human Services,
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to pmvide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, drspensmg,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the
actions that will be taken agdinst:employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to mform employee’s about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the

workplace;

() Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a
copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement requ1red by paragraph (a) that, as-a condition of employment
under the grant, the employee will:

(1)  Abide by the terms of the statement; and
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(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for. a violation of a criminal drug statute
occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)
(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted
employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity
the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f)  Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2)  Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drﬁg abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropriate agency,

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs (a), (b), (), (d), (¢), and ().

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection
with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

Check @] .if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

roval' whicheyer s later To:June 30,2015

Penod Covered by this Certification

Contractor Name

Joseph Pepe, mD : Presidect—pnd (£0

Name and Title of Au{horized Contractor Representative
3/ae/13

u%n'fati'\le Signature ' . Date

Contractor

Fl—o
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit E- - _ - . e

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING ’

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319
of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE —~ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV -A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services:Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person
: for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress.in connection with the awarding of
any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor)._

2) If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its
instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. ‘

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by
Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil
}75 than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure,

gnpture Contractor’s Representative Title

Jaseph fope, mp 248 /13
Contractor Name Ccﬁ’fldllc mﬂﬁd (é/wa/ Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Cemﬁcatnon

Instructions for Certification

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation.
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation
shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when DHHS
determined to enter into this transition. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Govermnment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered l:ransmon
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntary excluded,”
used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rule
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Covered Transaction”, “provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in

all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the

_ covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroncous. A participant may decide the

method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is
not  required to, check the  Nonprocurement List  (of  excluded parties).
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of
business dealings. "

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract _
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutés or commission of embezzlement, - )
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

c. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this certification;
and ~

d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Lower Tier Covered Transactions
" By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined
in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to tlie best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

A

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from partic¢ipation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lawer tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include

this clause entitléd “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion —
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all

sofk:itasions for lower tier covered transactions. )
Przsilerit-and (€0

Contrac’tol{sié;{t{lre Contractor’s Representative Title

Jowph Pepe, mb _3/42;///3
ContractorNCaZ%,lL mgoQau@ C\e/l‘*“e/‘ Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

‘Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE
The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with

Presdient anl (50
if; ) Contractor’s Representative Title
_toseph Pepe, md 3/os/s

'Contractor Name Date

Cotbhe ebicad Cooter

Standard Exhibits A - J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an
entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal-grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services
provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used
for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of
a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or lhe imposition of an administrative compliance order on the

responsible entity:

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
- representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 112 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submxttmg this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

W%)MM | | _ Precidlent and ceo
ontractor Sig nature i

vy Contractor’s Representative Title

Jwepf’) Repe. MD | ,, | 3/93/(3

Contlactdr Name ate:

Céﬂ'gw’to Vneogtmj C'en’!'e/

Standard Exhibits A —J
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Sectiorr 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of

Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal

Regulations.
c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal

Regulations.
d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.
e. “Data Apgrepation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section

164.501.
f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501. . .
“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,

TitleX11I, S;xbtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191

land the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR

Parts 160, 162 and 164. '

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.50] and shall

include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section

164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Sérvices. oo o S T )

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health information”

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity.
Standard Exhibits A - J Contractor Initials:
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I. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section

164.501.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee. - v

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by a

tcchnoiogy standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is
accredited by the American National Standards Institute. )

. p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constltute a violation of

the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
IL As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If.Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional

security safeguards.

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials: _____ffff
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3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part |, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of °
the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such

. business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

f.  Within ten (10) business days of feceiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered -
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity ta fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibits A —J Conlractor Initials: ggz
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“

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures
-as would be required for-Covered Entity to respond to-a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
" instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such

- response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate

shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by -
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any-copies or back-up

tapes of such PHIL If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been

otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such-PHI to those purposes that make

the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered

Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business

Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such

restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibits A -] Contractor Initials: _ -
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Q)

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate

the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowlcdge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the allcged breach within a

- timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither terinination nor cure is

feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is'necessary for Covered Entity. to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to pénnit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPA:A, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act. '

- Segregation. If any term or condition c;f this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or

circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
éffect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are

deg:lared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the

Agreement. .
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

CatHiolic Meflcnl Conter—
Jaseph lOusz\ mp

The State Agency Name

Name of Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative

ﬁ@/‘ A j)vpa.

Signature of}u#honzed Representative

oseph Bepe. mD

. Name of Authorized Representative

BUREAU CHIEF

" Name of Authorized Representative

Pr‘csu@mf and] Cep

Title of Authorized Representative

Sz

Title of Avithorized Representative

Slash3

Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related
to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below
$25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject
to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for gmnts

5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundmg actlon

7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those revenues are

greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of The
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR

Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the

following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department of
Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability

and Transparency Act.
- Jo Sep h P\g/)% mMD  Presillant anl (50

(Contractor kéﬁ')r#%’cntanve Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Ca‘*’{w)tc m\eaaa»/ Cen‘l‘ef/ N 2 /&8’//’3

(Contr'u,tor Namg) (Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 8 270 21378 1

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization receive
(1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-.
grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X:NO . IYES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the .public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?
. #NO __YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: .

Name: - ' Amount: __..
Name: ____"° Amount: ___. -
Name: .____. Amount: .
Name: ____ Amount; ______
Name: AWOUH(Z R

March 14, 2013
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name: Catholic Medical Center

Name of Bureau/Section:

i

Marie DeWitt, RN Site Coordinator & Case Manager $49,732
Rossana Goding, Adm Assistant Grant Management $42,390

Kim Kennedy, RN Manager Community Outreach $71,534

Paul Mertzic, RN MS, Exec. Director PPA/CHS $132,621

Joseph Pepe, MD President & CEO $458,369

$0

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Marie DeWitt, RN Site Coordinator & Case Manager $51,230
Rossana Goding, Adm Assistant Grant Management $43,238

Kim Kennedy, RN Manager Community Outreach $73,680

Paul Mertzic, RN MS, Exec. Director PPA/CHS $136,600

Joseph Pepe, MD President & CEO $472,120

$0

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEQ, CFO, etc.), and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personne! MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



